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The financial year 2022 was marked with 2 key events; continuing impact of pandemic and
escalation of geopolitical tensions between Russia and Ukraine into a war.

The year began with a far more lethal second wave of Covid that penetrated deeper in the
hinterlands of the country and we saw people experiencing heightened fear, panic and exercising
caution bringing business activity to a near halt in first quarter. This wave had a far-reaching
impact in our target market - rural & semi-urban India; our portfolio de-grew in Q1 but ensuring
health and safety of the team was our prime objective.

However, backed by experience of first wave, general population - businesses and borrowers
were much better prepared to address the challenges posed by the second lock down. Our
employees/business processes realigned seamlessly in order to comply with local level
administrative restrictions. Collections performance dipped in the Q1 but were quick to bounce
back as effects of wave ebbed and the normalcy restored by Q2. Emboldened by how our micro
entrepreneurs withstood the two covid waves, we progressed our expansion plan and added over
75 branches in our existing states and new states of AP, Telagana, MP and TN consequently we
more than doubled our team.

Third wave, the Omnicron variant, was experienced in the fatter part of the year. Although it
impacted a larger population, thankfully, claimed less casualties and had lesser impact on the
economic activity compared to the earlier waves.

In February 2022, the geopolitical tension escalated between Russia and Ukraine developing into
a large scale war. In addition to a humanitarian crises, this conflict led to severe sanctions on
Russia, severely affecting global food, energy and commodity prices, resulting in significant
escalation in inflation rates. To combat inflation, advanced economies commenced policy
normalisation/tightening which led to high volatility in our equity/debt markets. Indian CPl inflation
reached an 8 year high of 7.8% in April'’22. To balance the volatility and combat domestic inflation,
the Reserve Bank, on its part, increased the policy Repo rate by an aggregate 90 bps; 40 bps
during an out-of-turn monetary policy meeting on May 4" and 50 bps in it June’22 meeting. In
view of expected continuing inflationary pressure and complimentary to global counterparts,
further rate increases are expected.

We remain cautious on the growth outlook for next year and will be closely monitoring the macro
economic developments, monetary policy measures, pace of rate hikes and impact of
consumption, monsoons, commodity prices and various fiscal measures on our borrower's
behaviour.




In sync with Adani Group’s vision of “Growth with Goodness”, at Adani Capital our vision is to
support micro entrepreneurs. Our aim is to leverage technology and provide efficient, transparent
and cost-effective solutions to our entrepreneur borrowers. Adani Capital is a non-deposit taking
systemically important NBFC registered with the RBI and received its NBFC license in Jan 2017
and commenced operations from March 2017.

The lack of adequate and timely access to finance has been one of the biggest challenges in the
semi-urban and rural geographies in our country. Our products specifically address the financing
requirements of Tier 2 to Tier 4 markets. We provide loans ranging from Rs. 1 lakh to Rs. 1 cr for
meeting requirements of our entrepreneur borrowers. Our products can be classified as:

e Tractor Loans — New, Used/Refinance.

¢ Commercial Vehicle loans — New, Used/Refinance with a focus on small & light
commercial vehicles.

« Business Loans- fully collateralized term loans to small and micro enterprises for business
purpose.

e Supply Chain Finance - short term working capital facility to small and medium
enterprises.
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As of Mar'22, total assets under management (AUM)
were Rs. 2,050 cr, increase of ¢.58% YoY and over
45,000 customers across our 150+ branch locations in 9
states; Maharashtra, Gujarat, Rajasthan, Karnataka,
Madhya Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Tamil
Nadu.
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FY2o P21 Fr22 Adani Capital disbursed loans aggregating Rs.

1,144 cr which compares with Rs. 511 cr in FY21. Incrementally, for term products, gross
disbursement mix was secured MSME Loans (41%), Farm Loans (34%) and CV Loans (24%),
aligned with our targeted mix.

With foundation necessary for a stronger growth - sales footprint, collection and legal team now
in place, benefits should start accruing from following quarters.
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We follow a model-wise location specific dynamic business/product mix, based on the historical
performance and real time on-ground feedback. Our sourcing philosophy emphasizes self-




sourcing, existing customer references and lays weightage to borrower experience, land holding,
repayment track record.

Overall, we retained balance in our new vs used/pre-owned product mix. Karnataka saw a surge
in volumes and now contributes around 35% of the AUM alongwith Rajasthan. Share between
states was 32% & 41% respectively last year. We expanded in strategic markets AP, Telangana
and MP and are aiming for these states to
contribute 20% of gross disbursements in FY23.

Disbursement Trends

The portfolio quality held well during the year.
Collection Efficiency (installment received for billing
month/billing only for the month) dipped to 76% in
May'21 (2™ wave impact) but improved and stayed
around 85% throughout the year. The overdue
loans (Stage 2 and above) were Rs. 13.8 crore B
or 2.45% of the book as of Mar'22. Approx 80% of

the portfolio has never been delinquent.
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Our focus is largely on small and light commercial vehicle which provide last mile connectivity.
Individual owner drivers make up majority of our portfolio and the book has an average ticket size
of our portfolio is c. Rs. 4.2 lakh.
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The portfolio is fairly balanced across existing
states. New states, AP and TS have been
adequately staffed in Q4 and expected to achieve Y
trend productivity.
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The commercial vehicle industry was adversely hit by the pandemic. The impact was more
pronounced in the long haulage segment. With our focus on retail borrowers in tier 2 to tier 4
locations, minimized exposure in funding of Specialized Vehicle, M&HCV and passenger
vehicles, our portfolio quality and performance was better than our peers. Monthly Collection
Efficiency (installment received for billing month/billing only for the month) dipped to 73% in
May’'21 (2nd wave impact) but improved and stayed between 91-95% for the balance year. The

overdue loans (Stage 2 and above) were Rs. 34.5 crore or 9.75% of the book as of Mar'22. Approx
76% of the portfolio has never been delinquent.

Albeit emanating global recession fears, the domestic, especially, rural consumption remains
strong/steady and should improve earnings for the sector, gradually assuaging the excessive
strain of the pandemic years.
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size of Rs. 10.5 lakh, approximately
20% of the loans are to essential
services value chain - Grocery and
Medical stores.

Last two years, we focused on Rajasthan followed by Karnataka as businesses in other states
Maharashtra and Guijarat were languishing under effect of lockdowns. Rajasthan has seen the
state’s contribution increase from 40% to c. 59% of the book in FY22. This approach has delivered
a strong performance and good quality book. Almost 92% of the portfolio have never been
delinquent. Collection Efficiency (installment received for billing month/billing only for the month)
dipped to 85% in May'21 (2nd wave impact) but improved and stayed around 95% for most of the
year (97% in March'22). The overdue loans (Stage 2 and above) were Rs. 18.5 crore or 3.07% of
the book as of Mar'22.



We now are re-enforcing
teams/branches in other states
KN, AP, TS, MH & GJ and will
ook to balance out the mix
across all the states.

Dishursement Trends
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Our supply chain finance is an anchor
driven program where the anchor
involvement/commitment is high and
ongoing. We provide short term finance
to address working capital requirement
of small and medium enterprises
through our fully digital platform for end
to end customer engagement
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We have onboarded 36+ Anchors (2
Adani Group and 34 non-Group
Anchors) and have over 330 active MSME borrowers and in FY22 gross disbursements
aggregated over Rs. 1,486 cr at yield of 14%.
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AUM grew c.58% YoY from Rs. 1,292 cr as of Mar'21 to Rs. 2,050 cr (of which on-book loan
assets is Rs. 1,902 cr) comprising of tractor loan (29%), CV loan (19%), MSME term loan (37%)
and Supply chain financing (15%). We completed direct assignment transactions of ¢. Rs. 99 cr
in FY22.

The portfolio growth was towards latter half of the FY and total income increase was 33% YoY,
slower than AUM growth. Revenues increased from Rs. 190 crin FY21 to Rs. 253 crin FY22.




The company is now consistently profitable for preceding 5 years which were marked with major
market challenges for new entrants. Profitability was affected by 2 factors — cost associated with
business expansion in existing + new states and pandemic related impact on credit cost and
topline growth. 79 branches were added (125% increase over existing branch infrastructure) and
over 1000 employees were recruited in existing and new locations.

e NIMs improved slightly to 10.31% aided by top line increase and improvement in borrowing
costs;

s Pre-provisioning operating profit increased 36% to c. Rs. 41.6 cr (Rs. 30.6 crin FY21). The
net profit reduced to Rs. 7.1 cr in FY22 compared to Rs. 16.2 crin FY21,

— Opex increased by 39% (Rs. 75.6 crin FY’21 to Rs. 105.2 cr in FY'22).

—  Write off of Rs 16.5 cr; Rs. 7.9 ¢r — 2 Supply Chain Finance accounts, Rs. 8.6 — Loss of
repossession / write off during the year.

Adani Finserve Pvt Ltd, the holding company, infused equity of Rs. 150 cr in Q4 and Tier Il sub-
debt of Rs. 25 cr was issued in the Q3 attributing to strong capital adequacy levels. CRAR was
24.71% as of Mar'22 well above the RBI benchmark.

The borrowing nearly doubled from Rs.980 cr to Rs. 1890 cr this year. Company is well capitalized
and conservatively leveraged NBFCs with Net worth of Rs. 512 Cr and D/E ratio of 3.7 times as
of Mar'22.

Adam Capital follows a 90 -days past due deﬂmtnon (90 DPD) for NPA (default) classmcatron since
inception and our provisioning is higher than as prescribed under the RBI prudential norms for
NBFCs.

Stagewise Provision summary

Loan %
: o of Provision Prov:snon

Stage1 (0-30 dpd) ; 1, 788 0 94.0% ’ 121 0 7%
~ Stage 2 (31- 90 dpd)‘

S 86 as% 18 18%
Stage 3 (90+ dpd) o84 15% ,99 o 351%
kTotaI Loans and Advances - 19018  100% = 23.6 ‘5 - 1.2%

e ECL provisions of c. Rs. 23.6 cr comprising of 1.2% of Loan Assets
— additional management overlay provisions of Rs. 3.15 cr;
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o Delinquent, stage 2 & 3, assets were 6% of total assets in Mar'22 down from 7% in Mar'21;
e c. Rs. 16.5 cr, 2™ wave impacted portfolio, was written off

-~ Rs. 7.9 cr pertained to Supply Chain portfolio (2 accounts)

— Rs. 3.0 cr of discontinued unsecured MSME business loan and others

- Rs. 5.6 cr was loss on sale of repossessed assets and loan writeoff;

Rs. 44.1 cr or 314 cases were restructured under the RBI window to support borrower affected by second
wave of the pandemic; Rs. 10.1 ¢r pertain to own portfolio and balance to acquired portfolio from Essel
Finance.

- CV Loans ‘ 62 ' 34
MSME Loans (secured) ; z 70 4.8
Supply Chain Finance 3 1.9
Sub-total - Own Portfolio . 135 101

, Acqu:red Portfolio: Essel Finance - MSME Loan ‘ 179 ; 34
(secured) . ‘ i S ‘

Total . [ 314 441

The Gross NPA and Net NPA were 1.49% and 0.98% as of March 31, 2022 and a product wise
numbers are summarised below,

‘ . - . Avg. | -
. © | Portfolio | Ticket | NpA | NPA
Products . Os |\ Size | | segment
. | Reen | ] RsiLakn) | ()
%TractorLoans - - . 563  30% 33 63 | 112%

Portfolio

_CVLoans . 35 19% 46 76 214%
_MSMETermloans 605 3% 84 | 34  056%
Supply Chain Finance 27 15% 58 18  065%
Sub-total - Own Book Cs0 1 106%
Acquired Portfolio - MSME Term Loans f ;

(secureq) °§ssewmanceE e S 1B s e
Total- Adani Capital . g2 284 149%

RBI’s clarification on the recognition and upgradation of the NPA's for NBFC's in its circular dated
Nov 12t 2021 effective from Oct'22, is likely to increase the company’s NPA, but will not affect
the delinquency proportion or the net credit loss (NCL) as a majority of the Stage 3 assets are
being serviced. Our Collections/Sales team are adept at early delinquency management and have
been re-organised for effective 3™ bucket resolution. Borrower education and call center follow-
up is an ongoing process and should arrest the impact of the NPA recognition guidelines effective
from HY FY23.



FY2022 | HYSep21 FY 2021

SUMMARY.(R=.On . (IndAS-Audited) | (IndAS-Audited)
AUM 2050.0 1467.0 1294.0
& - Loan Assets* 1878.3 1324.2 1183.1
3 L Net Worth 512.0 355.2 350.2
= @ Borrowings 1896.5 1088.1 980.1
Deposits/Investments 5418 68.9 143.2
Interest Income# 253.2 109.8 190.7
(-) Interest Expense 107.4 46.6 85.1
Net Interest Income (NIi) 145.7 63.2 105.6
(+) Non Interest Income 1.0 0.5 0.8
‘% (-) Operating Expenses 105.2 48.9 75.8
£ Pre-provisioning operating Profit (PPOP) 41.6 14.8 30.6
E Impairment 22.6 10.0 4.7
l"’u - ECL provision 6.0 4.1 2.8
g - Loss on repo / write-off 8.6 1.0 1.9
L - SCF write-off 7.9 5.0 0.0
" Depreciation 7.2 3.1 58
Profit Before Tax 11.9 1.7 20.1
Tax 438 0.4 3.8
Profit After Tax 71 1.3 16.3
CRAR 24.71% 22.18% 26.22%
8 Net Debt/Equity Ratio 3.70 3.06 2.80
. Gross NPA % / Net NPA 149%/0.98%  2.56%/1.85%  1.38%/0.68%
E Net Interest Income (NIM) (incl pf) 10.31% 10.09% 9.57%
¥ Cost/Income Ratio 72% 77% 71%
Return on Assets (RoA) 0.52% 0.21% 1.47%

*Including accrued interest, net of provisions
# Includes revenue from operations

As our focus is on financing needs of micro and small enterprise, majority of our portfolio qualifies
as 'Priority Sector’. This helps setting up new credit facilities from banks as they prefer lending to
NBFCs/HFCs where end use of loan qualifies as a priority sector thereby addressing their priority
sector lending target requirements.




During the year, the company raised fresh limits of Rs. 1,074 cr from 13 lenders and issued NCDs
of Rs. 133 cr (secured NCDs — Rs. 98 cr & subordinate Tier ll bond — Rs. 35 cr). We continue fo
broaden our lender base and added xx new fenders. We now have 24 strong lenders relationships
diversified across public and private domain.

Term Loans from banks formed c. 69% of the mix, while capital market exposure contributed only
14%, which we intend to increase to 25% next FY.

Lender Mix Borrowing

Bank Short
e loans
10%

Private Seclor
Hanks, 25%,

#5
IMNC Banks,

9%, #3 Mon-covertible
Debentures
14%
Financial
Qthers Institutions,
ICDs), 15%, 1%, #4 Direct
#4 Assignment
7%
Borrowings: Rs. 1,902 cr (FY 21@ Rs 983 cr)
... FRscs
Opening Borrowing - Apr'21  983.2
Repayment - Bank Loan 348.4
~ NCD/CPs - 100.0
Availment - Bank Loan 1234.0
NCD/CPs 133.0

Closing Borrowing - Mar22  1901.7



Borrowing Movement - FY (Rs. cr)

2000
1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400

Tier ll sub-debt of Rs. 35 crore was raised in the year.

Direct Assignment — During the year, we concluded assignment transactions of Rs. 98.7 cr across
MSME loans and CV loans. With majority of our book qualifying as priority sector, appetite from
public sector banks has been strong.

Co-lending partnership — Programs for Tractor Loans and CV Loans with 2 lenders (public &
private sector bank) have gone live and we are seeing keen interest developing in such
partnerships.

Our overall cost of funds improved by c.
32 bps in the year as we negotiated
lower borrowing costs from new lenders

2150 8.9%
1950 :
1750 8.83%

8.8%

o 017 a7% ) . ,
1550 8.78% s son and running off of initial higher cost
0 070 .
1350 7% BE8TH N . debts. The borrowing rates on term loan
1150 1321 e
I 851%  sau were largely between 8.00 — 8.25%.
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With macro economic developments, the
borrowing costs on our outstanding
loans and fresh loans are expected to increase and will affect our overall cost of funds in FY23.
Most of the borrowing are MCLR linked and accordingly the borrowing costs are likely to reset by
50-75bps during the year by and focus for FY23 is arrest this increase by negotiating tighter credit
spreads with existing lenders, shorter tenor borrowings.

=3 Closing Borrowing
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Liquidity Buffer

Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22

@ Cash + Investments  ®O0D Limit & Undrawn Limit

* During the year, adequate liquidity buffer was maintained to address any uncertainties
with incipient COVID fear and support growing business requirement. The cash +
investments buffer increased towards to the close of financial year on utilization to the
timebound sanctions and also for business requirement in following quarter. Perennially
after close of financial year, lenders are occupied in their yearend closure/assessments
and fresh sanctions take time to come by, resulting in higher surpluses at close of a
financial year.

Since inception, we have maintained a matched ALM structure with all borrowings in the
3-5 years tenor. There is no ALM mismatch; we have positive cumulative mismatch across
all buckets up to one year

Structural Profile
100% 100%

L. 85%
3,

Cumulative Ouiflows
® Cumutative Inflows

436%  243% 192% 148%  38% 15% 9% 0%
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CRSIL Ratings has retained company's long term credit rating at ‘CRISIL AA - (High Degree of
Safety) with a stable outlook and highest short term rating (including Commercial Paper) at
CRISIL A1+,

Our Risk management framework has 4 pillars as below:

+  Dynamic credit risk policy
» Underwriting standards
+ Risk Analytics

« Collections management

Adani capital manages the credit risk through a balanced, structured credit policy framework -
well-defined selection criteria, boundary conditions and deviations. Risk based approval authority
is delegated by our Board of Directors and the Risk Management Committee and our risk
governance framework ensures adherence to the approval matrix. The credit policy is very
dynamic in nature and reviewed and calibrated regularly, based on the micro and macro industry
changes.

The fundamentals of the underwriting regarding the credit, capacity, collateral and capital is
ascertained through a well-trained team with adequate experience in respective product and
geography. Most of the verifications - KYC, bank statements, Income Tax returns, property
verifications, vehicle registration details are done digitally and part of the ever-evolving digital
underwriting journey. The team is regularly trained on policy and overall risk management.

We have a comprehensive portfolio monitoring mechanism. Our Risk Analytics team uses historic
information to extrapolate trends which presents opportunities to better identify, measure and
mitigate risk. The team integrates multiple sources of data which includes internal ~transactional
and behavioural data, external data - credit bureau and market information. A well-tuned early
warning system helps us identify and take preventive measures to arrest any deterioration of the
portfolio. The Risk analytics team provides valuable feedback for Credit policy configuration.

Risk analytics support deeper customer insights for better decisioning by way of predictive and
perceptive information.

Data drawn / inference help to predict risk from a micro and macro point of view.



With a strong emphasis on debtor management, we have a well-defined organization structure
and SOPs for overdue accounts. We leverage technology for digital collection (multiple channels
— NACH, e-Nach, UPI) and call center support for regular pre-presentation reminders, overdue
follow-ups. Our rule-based collection management system provides a 360-degree visibility of
customers to our field team.

We have a strong dedicated debtor management team which includes a robust legal recourse
cell.

Adani Capital has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to
provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring
of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and
for ensuring reliability of financial reporting.

Adani Capital has robust internal audit program, where the Group level internal auditors conduct
a risk-based audit with a view to not only test adherence to laid down policies and procedures but
also to suggest improvements in processes and systems.

In line with our strategy of expanding PAN India
ACPL- Organistion Strucutre footprints we continued expansion in manpower
headcounts. Adani Capital had 1648 employees as
on March 31, 2022.

Mid Lovel
Management
- We explore and use multiple sources to hire
experienced and self-motivated professionals whilst
maintaining source mix. We aim at selective hiring -
; hire right people for right profile, enabling us to bring
;i:':;:’::'t in employees adding value.  Contingent

1% compensation and employment security are our other
best practices. We believe in employee development

and growth of employees. Around 70% of the managerial opportunities are met internally.

Our people are our asset and we have created a flat and egalitarian organization.
Employee security, defined career path, regular learning, trainings, growth opportunities
and recognitions are central in our human resources framework.
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Continuous learning is our mantra. We continued to deploy robust learning programs
through virtual training sessions and digital learning to ensure continuous development of
our employees. Training program covered First Time Manager, Remote Team
Management Skill, Setting Priorities, Effective Review Mechanism, Managing Conflict,
Time Management and e-mail Etiquettes, lending Operations, Documentation, KYC &
AML Policy, IT System & Security, POSH and Accounts among others.

FY'23 has started with a confidence and optimism among general population. Although risk of a
fourth wave exists, adequate/successful vaccination drive, improved immunity levels and learning
co-existence with pandemic within the population should allow a normal, uninterrupted business
year.

Adani Capital's aim is to support small and micro entrepreneurs (farmers, transporters and small
business owners) by offering customized financing solutions leveraging technology.

* Branch/team expansion phase has been completed at the beginning of the CY23 and we
are now focused to improve productivity and consolidate position in our existing locations.

* Improve sourcing through alternative lead referral channels (non-DSA) — QR codes, CSC
partnership, lender partnership programs.

+ End to end digital process right from onboarding to sanction to disbursement using tele
verification, rule engine for bureau scorefunderwriting, quick valuation of security

* Leverage technology to improve the quality of underwriting and TAT

* Review & benchmark performance at a business executive, branch and segment level to
increase productivity

¢ Focus on people, process, productivity and profitability

Statements made in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may be “Forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or
implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include
economic conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in the domestic & overseas
markets in which the Company operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other
statutes and other incidental factors.
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Board's Report

To,
The Members
Adani Capital Private Limited

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Annual Report of your Company along
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Summary of Financial Results for the year ended 315t March 2022 is as under:
(Amount Rs. In Million)

| . Fortheyear | Fortheyear
ol bcdlee . |ooiended | | enged
No, ¢ =0 | 31stMarch, | 3lstMoarch,
- . . | 0% | o
1 Gross Income 2541.95 1914.76
2 Finance Cost 107414 850.90
3 Impairment on Financial Instrument 225.63 47.03
4 Employee Benefit Expenses 790.30 546,53
5 Pepr_eciation, amortisation and 20.98 5754
impairment
6 Other Expenses 261.34 211.53
7 Net Profit Before Tax 119.56 201.23
8 Provision for Taxation 47.63 38.46
9 Net Profit After Tax 71.93 162.77
10 Total Comprehensive Income 75.81 162.54
Transfer to Statutory reserve created
" | /s 45-1C of RBI Act 14.39 32.55
DIVIDEND

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of
Profits to meet future business requirements of the Company.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The information on overall industry structure, economic developments,
performance and state of affairs of the Company, risk management systems,
impact of COVID-19 on Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) sector and

1004/5, 10 Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpl@adani.com o %
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 wwuwv.adani.com O

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India
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operations of the Company is given in the Management Discussion & Analysis
Report forming part of Annual Report of the Company.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year under review, your Company earned the gross income of Rs.
2,541.95 million as against Rs. 1,914.76 million in the previous year. The total
expenditure during the year under review was Rs. 2,422.39 million as against Rs.
1,713.53 million in the previous year. The Total Comprehensive Income was Rs. 75.81
million as against Rs. 162.54 million in the previous year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company has increased its Authorsied Share
Capital from Rs. 200 million to Rs. 300 million as approved at the Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting held on 28 March 2022. This allowed the Company to raise more
fund by way of issuance of equity shares.

The Authorised share capital of the company for the year ended 315t March 2022
is Rs. 300 million (Rupees Thirty Crores) divided into 30 million (Three Crores)
Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital
During the year under review the Company has issued and allotted 54,54,545
equity shares of Rs. 10 each, at a premium of Rs. 265 per share on 315t March 2022.

The Paid share capital of the company for the year ended 315t March 2022 is Rs.
227.55 million divided into 22.75 million fully paid-up Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each.

Corporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +91 22 62411200
1004/5, 10 Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpl@adani.com
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.com

Maharashtra, India
CIN: U65990GJ2016PTC093692

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India
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LOAN OUTSTANDING

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company’s outstanding loan book amount is
Rs. 19,019.30 million as against Rs. 11,829.29 million for the previous financial year
ended 2020-21.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company's borrowings enjoy the following Credit Ratings:

) Rating / Outlook

Nature of borrowing CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans CRISIL A1+
Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/Stable
Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+
Short term Non - Convertible Debentures CRISIL A1+
Long term Non-Convertible Debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable
Subordinated Tier Il debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable
DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has raised Rs. 1,330 /- million through
Non-Convertible Debentures (*“NCDs"”) on private placement basis including
Subordinated Tier || debenture of Rs 350 million. As on 315t March 2022, the
outstanding NCDs stood at Rs. 2,849 million.

Credit Rating assigned to the NCDs is mentioned above. During the financial year
under review, interest on Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement
basis was due and paid on due date and there were no instances of interest amount
not claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company.

Your Company being NBFC, is exempted from the requirement of creating
Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) on privately placed debentures. Therefore,
no DRR has been created for the Debentures issued by your Company on private
placement basis.
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Disclosure under Master Directions issued by RBI for Non-Convertible Debentures:

« The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been
claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which
the Non-Convertible Debentures became due for redemption: Rs. Nil

+ The total amount in respect of such Debentures remaining unclaimed or
unpaid beyond the date of such Debentures become due for redemption: Rs.
Nil

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The details of the Debenture trustees of the Company are as under:

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Axis House,

Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai - 400025,

Maharashtra

Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.in
Website: www.axistrustee.in

LOANS FROM BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has availed Term Loans/WCDL/OD
facilities of Rs. 13,885/- million from various banks / Financial Institutions. As on
March 31, 2022, the outstanding loans stood at Rs. 16,116.37 million

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any public deposits
within the meaning of the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under as well as not accepted any public deposit within the meaning of the
RBI Direction, as the Company is registered as NBFC Company not accepting Public
Deposits.

Corporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +9122 62411200
1004/5,10% Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpl@adani.com
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.com

Maharashtra, India
CIN: U65990GJ2016PTCO93692

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India



Capital
NON- PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

Your company adhered to the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as
amended from time to time. The Company has created provisions for contingencies
on Standard Assets in accordance with the RBI Directions.

The amount of Gross Non- Performing Assets (NPAs) as at March 31, 2022 are Rs.
283.82 million, which is equivalent to 1.49 % of the loan portfolio of the Company,
as against Rs. 163.20 million i.e., 1.38% of the portfolio as at March 31, 20212. The
Net NPA as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. 184.34 million i.e., 0.98% of the loan portfolio
as against Rs. 80.73 million i.e., 0.69% of the portfolio as at March 31, 2021.The
total cumulative provisions towards loan and other assets as at March 31, 2022 is
Rs. 236.52 million as against 176.63 million in the previous year.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases involving multiple lending from different
banks / NBFCs, the Government of India has set up the Central Registry of
Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under
section 20 of the SARFAESI Act 2002 to have a central database of all mortgages
created by lending institutions. The object of this registry is to compile and
maintain data relating to all transactions secured by mortgages. Accordingly, your
Company is duly registered with CERSAI.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company is guided by the Risk Management Framework Policy framed in
accordance with the Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India.

The risk strategy laid down by your Company helps foster a disciplined culture of
risk management and control. In conjunction with these practices, your Company
intends to optimise its capital needs through growth, by achieving highest returns
on capital employed while managing risks appropriately.

Your Company continuously monitors loan portfolio. Portfolio level delinquency
metrics are tracked at regular intervals with focus on detection of early warning
signals (EWS) of stress. These limits are periodically reviewed based on changes in
the macro-economic environment, regulatory environment, and industry dynamics.
Existing credit exposure in the portfolio is continuously monitored and reviewed.
Key sectors are analysed in detail to suggest strategies, considering both risks and
opportunities. Corrective action, if required, is taken well in advance.
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COMPLINACE WITH REGULATORY NORMS:

Your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systematically Important Non-Banking
Financial Company holding Certificate of Registration number B.0100567. Your
Company is also registered as Corporate Agent (Composite) holding Certificate of
Registration number CA0628 with Insurance Regulatory Development Authority

A. PRUDENTIAL NORMS FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES

The Company is in compliance with the Prudential norms on Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances, as issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, as may be applicable to the Company.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR) / CAPITAL TO RISK ASSETS RATIO (CRAR)

Capital Adequacy Ratio is also one of the guidelines provided by the RBI to measure
the amount of capital, an NBFC retains compared to its risk. The Capital Adequacy
Ratio set standards for NBFCs by looking at a NBFCs ability to pay liabilities, and
respond to credit risks and operational risks. An NBFC that has a good CAR has
enough capital to absorb potential losses. Thus, it has less risk of
becoming insolvent and losing lenders’ money.

As per RBI Directions the Company is required to maintain 8 minimum capital
adequacy ratio of 15%.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of your Company as at 315t March, 2022 stood
at 24.71%., which includes CRAR of Tier-l Capital at 22.49% and CRAR of Tier-li
Capital at 2.22%.

SPECIAL RESERVE (STATUTORY RESERVE CREATED U/S 45-IC OF RBI ACT)

Pursuant to the provisions of section 45-IC of RBI Act, the Company is required to
create a Special Reserve and transfer therein a sum not less than 20% of its Net-
Profit, every year.

During the reporting financial year, your company has transferred the amount of
14.39 million in Special Reserve, as per the requirement of the section 45-IC of RBI
Act. The closing Balance of the said reserve as on 315t March 2022 is stood at Rs.
66.29 million.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CRITICAL POLICIES AND CODES

Your Company has in place a Fair Practices Code (FPC), as required by RBI, which
includes guidelines on appropriate staff conduct when dealing with the customers
and on the organisation’s policies vis-a-vis client protection.

Your Company has in place a Board approved Know Your Customer & Anti Money
Laundering Policy (KYC & AML Policy) and compliance with the said Policy are
adhered with,

The Company has in place a Risk Containment Policy to establish an anti-fraud
culture and promote consistent organizational behaviour by providing guidelines
to aid in fraud detection and prevention. It will also communicate important
deterrence message to staff and third parties that the company is committed to a
zero-tolerance approach to any fraud committed.

To ensure the redressal of Grievance of Customers, your Company has in place a
Grievance Redressal Policy in place, which is available on the website of the
Company i.e., www.adanicapital.in. The said Policy prescribed the detailed
guideline and Turn Around Time (TAT) to handle and resolve the Customer
Complaints.

The Reserve Bank of india Act empowers RBI to levy a penalty on NBFCs for
contravention of the Act or any of its provisions. Your Company has complied with
the said provisions of all such directions, guidelines and provisions etc. and
accordingly RBI has not levied any penalty on your Company during the year.

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has no subsidiary company. Adani Finserve Private Limited is holding
Company, which holds 100% shareholding in the Company.

During the year under review, no Company become or ceased to be the Subsidiary,
joint venture, or associate company.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The composition of the Board of the company is as follows: -

e Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO
e Mr. R. M Malla - Independent Director

¢ *Mrs. Padma Chandrasekaran - Independent Director

e Mr, Sagar Adani - Director

* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran is appointed as an Additional Director (Independent
Category) w.e.f. 07th April, 2021 and her appointment was regularised at the
Annual General Meeting held on 315t August, 2021.

Your Company being Private Limited Company, none of the Directors are required
to retire by rotation.

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent Director under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that she meets the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further the
Company has also received the Declaration and Undertaking from Directors, as per
the requirement of “Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Following officer is the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the
Requirement of the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO
2. Mr. Viral Shah - Chief Financial Officer
3. *Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

*Mr. Bhavik Shah has resigned, and Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi has joined as Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer pursuant to the Board Resolution dated 1™ November 2021.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

Company evaluated the performance of its Directors. However, as your Company is
neither a Listed Company nor a public company having a paid up capital of Rs. 25
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crores or more, the statement indicating the manner in which formal annual
evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors is not required to be disclosed.

POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Company duly follows the Policy on prevention of sexual harassment and the said
policy seeks to protect women employees from sexual harassment at the place of
work. The primary objective of the same is to safeguard the interest of female
employees in the Company and also provides for punishment in case of false and
malicious representations. The Company spread awareness on the same by
providing training to its employees at regular intervals.

During the year, no complaint has been received by the Sexual Harassment
Committee.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Since the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding
particulars of loans, guarantees given and security provided in the ordinary course
of business is exempted under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the Act. Details
of Investments made by the Company is disclosed in the Financial Statements
forming part of Annual Report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the period under review 8 Board Meetings were held as per the following
details:
1. 7% April 2021
18t May 2021
18t June 2021
30 July 2021
26t August 2021
11" November 2021
2279 November 2021
14t February 2022

®NOWAWN

Mr. Gaurav Gupta chaired the above-mentioned Board meetings.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
the Board hereby submit its responsibility Statement: —

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial
controls were adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements as designed
and implemented by the Company are adequate. The Internal Financial Control
procedure adopted by the Company are adequate for safeguarding its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
During the year under review, the Internal Financial Controls were operating
effectively, and no material or serious observation has been received from the
Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.
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AUDITORS

Pursuant to the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors
(SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and
NBFCs (including HFCs), issued by Reserve Bank of India vide its Circular dated
April 27, 2021, the NBFCs having asset size of not less than Rs. 1,000 Crores are
mandatory required to follow the aforesaid guidelines including appointment of
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a Continuous period of 3 years, subject
to the Audit Firms, satisfying the eligibility norms, each year.

An audit firm would not be eligible for re-appointment in the same Entity for six
years (two tenures) after completion of full or part of one term of the audit tenure.

Further, the RBI had given the timeline upto H2 (Second Half) of FY 2021-22 to
adopt the aforesaid guideline.

The members may note that, S R BATLIBOI & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants were
initially appointed as Statutory Auditors at the EGM of the Company held on March
30, 2017 for period of one financial year. They were further re-appointed at the
AGM of the Company held on September 28, 2017, for a period of five years i.e. upto
the conclusion of AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2022.

As the Auditors have completed the period of 3 years of their appointment, it was
required to rotate them and appoint a new Statutory Auditors, pursuant to the
aforesaid guidelines read with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Therefore on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, members of the
Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 26th November, 2021
approved the appointment of Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having
FRN 002391C/N500069, as a Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of
three years i.e. upto the conclusion of 8th AGM of the Company and subject to the
aforesaid Audit firm satisfying the eligibility norms, as per the aforesaid RBI
Guidelines, each year and subject to the confirmation/approval of the appointment
of the said Audit Firm by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM) i.e. 6th AGM.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022, does not contain any qualification and is self-
explanatory, hence does not call for any comment of Board.
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules
2014 read with Section 177(9) of the Act (as amended from time to time), the
Company has in place Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy (“Policy”) to enable
Directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances, significant
deviations from key management policies and reports any non-compliance and
wrong practices, e.g., unethical behavior, fraud, violation of law, inappropriate
behavior / conduct, etc.

The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee / Board
from time to time. None of the Directors or employees have been denied access to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

The objective of this mechanism is to maintain a redressal system which can
process all complaints concerning questionable accounting practices, internal
controls, or fraudulent reporting of financial information.

The Policy framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the
Act and same is available on the website of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company recognizes the responsibilities towards society and strongly intends
to contribute towards development of knowledge-based economy.

The Company has contributed INR 13.25 lakhs (being 2% of average net profits for
last 3 years) towards CSR activities in FY 2021-22 through the Adani Foundation,
as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy of the
Company. The Annual Report on CSR containing the details on CSR spending is
annexed as Annexure-1.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of the following Members:

« Mr. Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEO
« Mr R M Malla - independent Director
* Mr. Sagar Adani- Director
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The Company has also formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which is

available on the website of the Company (https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads)
Terms of reference of the CSR Committee: -

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company
as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
referred to in clause (3)

c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time
to time.

d) Update the Board on the implementation of various programmes and
initiatives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

Mr. R M Malla - Independent Director
* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran- Independent Director
* Mr. Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEO

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee: -

(3) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors of the Company.

(b) review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process.

(c) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon.

(d) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company
with related parties.

(e) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

(f) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.

(g) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

(h) Any other function as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2013, RBI guidelines or any other regulatory authorities from
time to time,
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members.

*  Mr. R M Malla - Independent Director
* Mrs. Padma Chandrasekaran- Independent Director
*  Mr. Sagar Adani- Director

Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: -

(a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

(b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide
necessary report to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.

(c) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

(d) To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward
linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement
relating to the Company’s operations.

(e) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term
sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive
advantage.

(f) To devise a policy on Board diversity.

(g) To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan

(h) Any other function as may be mandated by the Board or stipulated by the
Companies Act, 2013, RBI or any other regulatory authorities from time to
time.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMP, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION

The company pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013
has formulated and adopted a Nomination & Remuneration Policy which is
available on the website of the Company i.e.

https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR:

The Company duly ensures the Fit and Proper Criteria, as prescribed by RBI read
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of law,
regarding the appointment of Directors. Your Directors, including the Director
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appointed during the FY 2021-22, also submitted the required Disclosures and
Undertakings to confirm the aforesaid compliance.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143
(12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GEOVERNMENT

There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under
other than those which are reportable to the Central Government.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

Members of the Company has approved Employee Stock Option scheme for
attracting, retaining and rewarding Employees of the Company. Board of the
Company has granted the options to the eligible employees of the Company, as
detailed hereunder:-

Sr. No. | Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme
I. | Options granted Refer to the Note No. 55 of the Financial
Il. | The Pricing formula Statements

1. Options vested

IV. Options exercised

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and none of the
transactions with the related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has
formulated the Related Party Transaction Policy which is also available on the

Company's website (https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads).

The Directors draw attention of the Members to Note No. 49 to the Financial
Statements which sets out related party transactions’ disclosures.
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During the year under review, there were no material contracts or arrangements,
or transactions entered into by the Company with related parties. Form AOC-2 is
enclosed as Annexure-2 to this report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company does not fall within the purview of the provisions of disclosure of
Remuneration under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human Resource Development is considered important for effective
implementation of business plans. Constant endeavours are being made to offer
professional growth opportunities and recognitions, apart from imparting training
to employees. During the reporting year, in-house training programmes were
provided to employees, inter aliag, in Lending Operations, Documentation, KYC &
ALM Policy, IT System & Security etc. Your Company’s total headcount stands at
1,648 employees as on 315t March 2022.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which these
financial statements relate on the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations
in future.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, the rules made there under relating
to conservation of energy, technology absorption do not apply to your Company as
it is not a manufacturing Company. However, your Company has been increasingly
using information technology in its operations and promotes conservation of
resources.

Details relating to Foreign Exchange Inflows and Outflows is given herein below:

Rs. in Millions

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Foreign Currency Transaction
(Outflow) 2.37 2.51
Receivable and Payable outstanding
in foreign currency - -

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: NIL

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF: NIL

To ensure the compliance with all the applicable provisions of Law, your Company
has availed the services of the Compliance Module software in the name of
“Legatrix Compliance Solution”. This is an IT-enabled legal support service relating
to legal and regulatory compliances. The Company monitors and ensures the
compliance of all the applicable laws, through this Compliance Solution.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, your Company has appointed M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Company

Corporate office:
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1004/5,10% Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +9122 26520650
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Secretaries in whole-time practice, based in Ahmedabad, to carry out the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year under consideration i.e., FY 2021-22.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers,
mentioned in Secretarial Audit Report provided by the aforesaid Secretarial
Auditors in the prescribed format i.e.,, MR-3, since the Company has ensured
compliance of all the applicable regulatory and statutory provisions of law(s). The
report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure-3.

Further, as there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer is
given by the Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report and by the Company Secretary
in practice in their Secretarial Audit Report, hence there is no explanation or
comments have been given by the Board.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to the Reserve Bank of Indis,
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, Office of Registrar of
Companies, BSE Ltd, the Company's Customers, Creditors/Bankers, Members,
Vendors and others for the continued support and faith reposed in the Company.
The Board also places on record its deep appreciation for the dedication and
commitment of the employees at all levels. The Directors would also like to thank
the Credit Rating Agencies for their co-operation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of _

Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd. .~ =

Mr. Gaurav Guf; 3
Managing Director & CEO
DIN- 04669109
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Date: 23" May 2022

Corporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +9122 62411200
1004/5,10" Floor, C-Wing, One BKC Fax +91 22 26520650
C-66, G- Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, contact.acpl@adani.com
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 www.adani.com

Maharashtra, India
CIN: U65990GJ2016PTC093692

Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India



1.

Annex-1
Annual Report on CSR Activities
for Financial Year
2021-22

BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY,

Board in its Meeting dated 29th June 2018 adopted the CSR Policy of the
Company in compliance with section 135 of the Companies Act.

a) The Company endeavours to contribute to CSR activities as specified under
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. A corpus with an amount at least 2%
of the Average Net Profits* of the Company made during the 3 (Three)
immediately preceding financial years will be made for this purpose as per the
provisions of the Act and rules made there under.

b) As a part of CSR program, the Company plans to focus on the activities as
defined in the schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,

Implementation of CSR Projects The Company shall implement the identified
CSR Projects by the following means:

I Direct Method

1. The Company may itself implement the identified CSR Projects presently
within the scope and ambit of the Thrust Areas as defined in the Policy;
2.The Company may also implement the identified Projects presently through
its Foundation or Society which is involved in CSR activities, within the

scope and ambit of the Thrust Areas as defined in the Policy.

3. The CSR Officer may engage external professionals/firms/agencies if
required, for the purpose of implementation of its CSR Projects.

4. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its Group
Companies if required, for fulfilling its CSR objects through the Direct
Method, provided that the CSR Committees of respective companies are in
a position to monitor separately such CSR Projects.

il Indirect Method

1. The Company may implement the identified CSR Projects through Agencies,
subject to the condition that:

Adani Capital Pvt Ltd Tel +9122 62411200
One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, 10th Figor Fax +9122 2652 0650
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East contact.acpl@adani.caom
Mumbai 400 051 www.adanicapitalin

Maharashtra, India
CIN: UB59906GJ2016PTC0S3692

Registered Office: Adani House, Nr Mithakhali Circle, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India



2.

e The activities pursued by the Agency are covered within the scope and
ambit of Schedule VII to the Act provided

e The Agency has an established track record of at least three years in
undertaking similar programs or projects, and

e The Company has specified the Project to be undertaken through the
Agency which shall preferably be in Thrust Areas, the modalities of
utilization of funds on such Projects and the monitoring and reporting
mechanism which shall be at least once in three months.

2. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its holding
and subsidiary Companies and Group Companies if required, for fulfilling its
CSR objects through the Indirect Method provided that the CSR
Committees of respective companies are in a position to monitor separately
such Projects.

COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Sl No. Name of Designation / Number of Number of
Director Nature of meetings of CSR| meetings of CSR
Directorship |Committee held Committee
during the year |attended during the
year
1 Mr. Gaurav Managing 1 1
Gupta Director & CEO
2 Mr. R.M. Independent 1 1
Malla Director
3 Mr. Sagar Director 1 0
Adani

PROVIDE THE WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY

AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY.

1) Company’s CSR Policy is available at the following weblink:-
https://www.adanicapital.in/Downloads

2) Composition of CSR Committee is provided in point no. 2 of this report, which
also forms part of Annual Report. The report is also available on the website of
the Company.

3) The Company has contributed Rs. 13.25 lakh through Adani Foundation.
With an experience of working with communities for more than 25 years, the
Adani Foundation is increasingly focused on scaling integrated development
efforts across India. It believes that everyone, regardless of who and where
they are, deserves equitable access to opportunities and a fair chance to a
better quality of life. Over the years, the Foundation has responded to society’s
changing needs in alignment with Susta

Adani Capital Pvt Ltd
One BKC, C-Wing, 100475, 10th Fleor
Bandra
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it sustainable livelihoods, health and nutrition, and education for all or
addressing environmental concerns - with an enhanced focus on the
empowerment of women. Today, our reach covers 3.7 million people in 2,409
villages across 16 states in India.

In March 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus marked the beginning of an
unprecedented time in modern history. The Foundation's relief efforts
continued into FY 2021-22 to safeguard communities amidst grave adversities
brought upon by subsequent pandemic waves. As the situation continued to
evolve, the CSR activities pivoted their everyday processes for building back a
more resilient and inclusive society.

The contribution has been utilized by Adani Foundation for implementing the
following intervention.
<+ EDUCATION: Supporting Infrastructure Facilities of Adani International

School
AdaniInternational School is a new hub of experiential learning that focuses
on children's overall intellectual, physical, emotional and social
development. Located in Adani Shantigram, Ahmedabad, its vision is to
create state-of-the-art education infrastructure that contributes towards
building future generations that are inspired to participate in our core cause
of nation-building and pushing India’s global ambitions.

< COVID Relief: Providing Food (1000 Plates) in Ahmedabad
In Ahmedabad at four “Aahar Kendra” Centres free, nutritious meals were
provided. This was to address the loss of livelihoods amongst the
underprivileged sections of the society

PROVIDE THE DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED
OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE
(ATTACH THE REPORT): Not Applicable

DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-
RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET OFF FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: Not Applicable.

AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5) RS. IN LAKH:
662.16

A) TWO PERCENT OF AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION
135(5) (RS. IN LAKH): 13.25

Adani Capital Pvt Ltd Tel +9122 62411200
One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, 10th Fioor Fax +9122 2652 0650
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East contact.acpl@adani.com
Mumbai 400 051 www.adanicapital.in

Maharashtra, India
CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692

Registered Office: Adani House, Nr Mithakhali Circle, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India



(B) SURPLUS ARISING OUT OF THE CSR PROJECTS OR PROGRAMMES OR
ACTIVITIES OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEARS: Not Applicable

(C) AMOUNT REQUIRED TO BE SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: Not

Applicable

(D) TOTAL CSR OBLIGATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (7A+7B-7C) (RS. IN LAKH):

13.25

8. (A) CSR AMOUNT SPENT OR UNSPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR;

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Amount transferred| Amount transferred to any fund
Amount | tg Unspent CSR Account | specified under Schedule VIi as per
Spent for as per section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
the Financial »
Year. (in Rs.)
Amount. Date of |Name of the] Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
13,25,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST ONGOING PROJECTS FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR:

M @ 13| @ ©) ® [ @ | @ | (9 (10) (11)
Sl.| Name | Item |Local| Location of |Proje| Amou|Amou|Amoun| Mode of Mode of
No.| of the |from | area |the project.| ct nt nt Implemen| Implementati
Project| the |(Yes/ durat|alloca|spent|transf| tation - | on - Through
list of| No). ion. | ted |inthe| erred | Direct |[Implementing
activi for |curre| to |(Yes/No). Agency
ties Stat|District. the | nt |Unspe Name| CSR
in e. projec(financint CSR Registr]
Sche t(in | ial |Accou ation
dule Rs.). | Year | nt for numbe
Vil to (in the .
the Rs.). |project]
Act. as per
Sectio
135(6)
(in
Rs.).

Adani Capital Pvt Ltd
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1. |Suppor VIl (ii){ Yes |Guj|Ahmed| 2 {11,00,{11,00,| O No Adani |CSR0000
ting arat| abad |Years| 000 | 000 Found| 0265
Infrastr ation
ucture
Faciliti
es  Of
Adani
Interna
tional
School

Total 11,00,|11,00,f O
000 | 000

(C) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST OTHER THAN ONGOING
PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

M @ G | @ (5) (6) () (8
SI.[Name of| Item |Loca| Location of the | Amount | Mode of Mode of
No| the |[fromthe| | project. spent for implemen| implementation -
Project | list of |area the tation - Through
activitie|(Yes/ project (in| Direct implementing
sin |No). Rs.). |{(Yes/No). agency.
schedul State. | District. Name. CSR
e Vil to registrat
number.
1. Providin | VIl (i) |Yes| Gujarat|Ahmedab|1,94,000 No Adani |CSR00000
g Food ad Foundatio 265
during n
Corna
1000
Plates
Total 1,94,000

(D) AMOUNT SPENT IN ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEADS: Rs. 31,000
(E) AMOUNT SPENT ON IMPACT ASSESSMENT, IF APPLICABLE: Not Applicable
(FTOTAL AMOUNT SPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (8B+8C+8D+8E): Rs.

13,25000.
Adani Capital Pvt Ltd Tel +9122 62411200
One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, 10th Floor Fax +9122 2652 0650
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East contact.acpl@adani.com
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(G) EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY: Not Applicable

Sl Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per section 135(5)

(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) |Excess amount spent for the financial year
[GD)-W]

(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding
financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (A) DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL
YEARS: Not Applicable

Sl | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to| Amount
No. | Financial [transferred|spentinthel any fund specified |remaining
Year, to Unspent| reporting | under Schedule VIl as |to be spent

CSR Financial | per section 135(6), if in
Account Year (in any. succeeding
under Rs). | Name |Amount| Date of | financial

section 135 of the |(in Rs). [transfer| Years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) Fund Rs.)

1.

2.

3.

Total

Adani Capital Pvt Ltd Tel +9122 62411200

One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, 10th Floor Fax +9122 2652 0650
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(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR ONGOING
PROJECTS OF THE PRECEDING FINANCIAL YEAR(S): Not Applicable

M @ 3 4) &) (6) ) (8) (9
Sl |Project| Name | Financial Project | Total | Amount |Cumulative| Status of
No.| ID. of the [Year in which{duration.| amount {spent on| amount |the project
Project.| the project allocated the spent at -
was for the [project in| the end of [Completed
commenced. project the reporting | /Ongoing.
(in Rs.). |reporting| Financial
Financial| Year. (in
Year (in Rs.)
Rs).
1
Total

10. IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS
RELATING TO THE ASSET SO CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR SPENT IN THE
FINANCIAL YEAR: Not Applicable

(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such

capital asset is registered, their address etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset).

11. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT
OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER SECTION 135(5): Not Applicable

For Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd.

K\?B\“)Jé?&klﬁ”//’
M, Gaté/t;av Gupta
Managing Director &CEOQ
DIN: 01669109

Date: 23 May 2022

Tel +9122 62411200
Fax +9122 2652 0650
contact.acpl@adani.com
wwwv.adanicapital.in
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Annex-3
CHIRAG SHAH & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

1213, Ganesh Glory, Nr. Jagatpur Crossing,
Besides Ganesh Genesis,

Off. S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 382 481.
Ph.: 079-40020304, 6358780040/41/42
E-mail : chi118_min@yahoo.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Adani Capital Private Limited
Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Adani Capital Private Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit by using appropriate Information technology tools like virtual data sharing
by way of data room and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,
2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The physical Inspection or
Verification of documents and records were taken to the extent possible:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i).  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii).  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;




(iv).

{vi).

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulations, 2021;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009:-Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

2018:-Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period; and

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015:-
Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs, as
Identified by the management, that is to say:

Reserve Bank of india, 1934

b. Prevention of Money-Laundering Act,2002.

Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s):-




During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year Company has passed following special resolutions;

1. Appointment, fixing of remuneration and terms of appointment of Nangia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place and to fill the vacancy
of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,

2. Raising of Funds through Various Modes

3. Increase in the Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 20 Crores to Rs.
30Crores

/
e
WA
TN,
Place: Ahmedabad CS Raimeen Marad{fgf}gc@
Date: 23" May, 2022 Partner ==

Chirag Shah and Associates
FCS No. 11283

CP No.: 17554

UDIN: F011283D000364625
Peer Review Cer. No. 704/2020

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.



‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members

Adani Capital Private Limited
Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards
and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company. o
//I
/e
3
A
Place: Ahmedabad €S Raimeen Maraﬂi

Date: 23" May, 2022
Chirag Shah and Associates

FCS No. 11283
CP No.:17554



NANGIA & COLLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind A5 Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of Adani Capital Private Limited {“the Company"), which
comptise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting poficies
and other explanatory informatjon,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
A5 Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as armended (“the Act”) in the
manner sa required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit including Other Comprehensive
Income, its Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis far Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Staterments in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Ruies thereunder, and we have fulfitled aur
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinien on the tnd
AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note 61 of the Statement, which describes the uncertainties arising from COVID-19
pandemic and impact on the Company's operations and estimates related to impairment of assets, which are
dependent on future developments regarding the severity and duration of pandemic.

Our apinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022, These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter betow, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that contenxt.

C/ We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters {Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsihilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities far the audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessrent of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind A5 Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

{(a) lmpairment of loan assets as at balance sheet date (expected credit losses)
As described in note 53.1 of the Ind AS Financial Staterments

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments ("Ind AS 109"} | Qur audit precedures included the following:
requires the Company to provide for impairment of
its loan assets using the expected credit foss (ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over thair life,
considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company's loans and
advances. In this process, a signiticant degree of
judgement has been applied by the management
far:

a) Befining Staging of loans {i.e. dassification in
'significant increase in credit risk' ("SICR"} and
‘default’ categories);

b) Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity
by using appropeiate statistical technigues;

c) Estimation of behavioural life;

d) Estimation of losses for loan praducts with no /
minirnal historical default; and

e) Management overlay for macro-economic
factors and estimation of their impact on the
credit quality.

s [valuated the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of loan assets and assessed compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109 and with the
governance framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of India
guidedings issued an 13 March 2020,

s fvaluated the management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL estimation and
related assumptions and tested the controls around
data extraction and validation

¢ Assessed the criteria and tested sample for staging of
toans based on their past-due status and to evaluate
compliance with requirement of Ind A5 109.

» Tested the FCL model, including assumptions and
wnderlying computation. Tested the input data used
for determining the Probability of default and loss
given default rates and agreed the data with the
underlying bocks of account and records,

+ Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company.

¢ Read and assessed adequacy of the disclosures
included in the financial statements in respect of ECL
with the requirements of Ind AS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure ("Ind AS 107") and Ind AS
109.

in the view of such high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is
identified as key audit matter,
{b) Information technology ('IT') systems and controls
The financial accounting and reporting systems of | Qur audit procedures, with support from IT specialists,
the Company are fundamentally reliant on IT [ included the following:
systems and IT controls to process significant | « Tested the desigh and aperating effectiveness of IT
fransaction  velumes,  Automated  accounting access controls over the information systems that are

procedures and T environment controls, which
include T governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are required
1o be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
appropriate financial reporting

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment of

critical to financial reporting.

Tested IT general controls {such as logical access,
changes management and aspects of (T operational
controls). This included testing that requests for
access to systems were appropriately reviewed and
authorised.
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the general IT controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

Tested the Company's periodic review of access
rights. We inspected requests of changes to systems
for appropriate approval and authorisation,

In addition to the above, we tested the design and

operating effectiveness of certain  application
controls {autornated and T dependent manual
controls) that were considered as key internal
controls aver financial reporting.

+ Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures

Other Information

The Company’s Baard of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
Board’s Repart {“other information”), but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's
repart thereon.

Qur opinion en the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, cansider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the wark we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including Other Cormprehensive income, Cash Fiows and Changes
in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generaily accepted in Indla, including the
accounting Standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records
in accardance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Cernpany and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatermnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends ta liquidate the Camparny or to cease operations,
or has no realistic giternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reparting process,
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Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the ind A% Financia! Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Staterments,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintaln professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alse:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due tao
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our optnion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
cotlusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal cantrod,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the company has adequate internat financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
repart. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind A% Financial Statements, including the
disclosures and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
muost significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasohably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such cammunication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As reguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of Indla in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of aur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from aur examination of those hooks;

{c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Incarng, and the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

{d)  In our opinian, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Beard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in “Annexure 27;

{g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position-
Refer note 41 to Ind AS Financial Statements

ii. The Company did not have any lang- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

fiil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv.  {a} The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 63.8 to the accounts, during the year no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either fram barrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”},
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shal,
directly o indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by ar an behalf of the Company (“Ulimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the Jike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 63.8 to the accounts, during the year no funds have been received by the Company
from any persan or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend ar
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{(¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i} and {ii}) of Rule 11l{e} contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year,
For Nangia & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN No, 002391C/N5D0069

reet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 22601788AIKIWVE4AB54

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on ather legal and regulatory reguirements’
of our report of even date

Re: Adani Capital Private Limited {"the Company®)

{i) {a}{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{a){B) The Company has maintained praper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets including praperty,
plant and equipment by which the fixed assets including property, plant and equipment and are verified by
the management according to a phased programme designed to caver all the tems over a period of three
years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets and no discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c} There is no immavable property {other than properties where the Comparny i5 the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement ta report on clause 3{i){c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Bermami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i} {2} The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to repart on clause 3{ii)(a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) As disclosed In note 63.4 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned woTking capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

{iii)  {a} The Company's principal business is to give ioans accardingly, Clause 3{iii){(a) of the Order is not
applicable ta the Company,

{b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances to Companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are nat prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{c) In respect of loans granted to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or
recelpts are reguiar except in the following cases:

Name of the Entity / Loan | Amount {In | Due date Extent of delay (In | Remarks,
product Rs million) days) if any
Tractor and commercial vehicle 822.50 | Various due Mare than one day | -
loans dates o
Business and other retail joans 1,231.24 | Various du Mare than one day | -

dates
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{d} The following amounts are overdue for mare than ninety days from Companies to whom loan has been
granted, and reasanable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amaount of
principal and interest.

No. of cases | Principal overdue {ln | Interest overdue | Total Overdue (In | Remarks, If any
Rs millions) {In Rs millions) Rs millions)
651 253.95 29.87 283.82 _ o

(e) The Company’s ptincipal business is to give loans, Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(Hi)(e} of the
(Order is not applicable to the Company.

{f) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause 2{76) of Campanies Act, 2013,

(v}  In our opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans ta directars including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and guarantees, and securities
Eiven have been complied with by the Company.

{v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which arg
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirerment to report on clause 3{v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

{vi)  The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company have generally been regular in
depositing with appropriate autharities though there has been slight delay in a few cases of undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax, employee state insurance
corporation and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to duty of customs, sales-tax,
duty of excise and value added tax are currently not applicable to Company. According to the infarmation
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the yvear end, for a period of more than six
maonths from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the infermation and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, employee’s
state insurance, goads and service tax and cess which have not been deposited an account of any dispute.
The provision relating to sales- tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty and value-added tax are currently
not applicable to the Company.

(vili} According te the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

{ix} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any governmeant authority,

(c) According ta the infermation and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained,
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{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
staternents of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes
by the Campany.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement to
repart on clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order is not applicatde to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Companry.

(x) (&) According to the information and explanations are given to us, the Company has not raised any money
by way of initial public offer ar further public offer {including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3{x}(a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully ar partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report an
clause 3(x}{b} of the Qrder is not applicahle to the Company.

{xi}  (a)According to the information and explanations are given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

{h) During the year, no report under sub-section [12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by & secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

{c} As represented to us by the management, there are na whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

{xii} The Company is not a Midhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the
requirement to report on clauses 3(xiij(a), {b) and (¢) of the Drder is not applicable to the Company.

{xiii} According to the information and explanations are given to us, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards,

{(xiv) {a} According to the information and explanations are given to us, the Company has an internal audit
systerm commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the pertod under
audit have been considered by us,

{xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence the requirement to report
on clause 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) (a) Accarding to the Information and explanations given ta us and audit procedures performed by us, the
Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b} The Company has net conducted any Non-Banking Financial without obtaining a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

110 Floor, B Wing, Peninsula Business Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013, India
pr w8122 6173 7000 {491 226173 7060

LLP Registration NO. AAJ-1379
Noida - New Delhi - Gueagram - Mumbai - Bengalure - Chennai - Pune - Dehradun



NANGIA & CO LLP

(xvii}

(xviii)

{xix)

(xx)

{xxi}

{c} The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xv){c) of the QOrder is not applicable to
the Company.

{d) According to the Information and explanations given to us, there is no Cere investment Company as a
part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xv}(d) of the Grder is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current yvear and in the immediately preceding financial
year respectively.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we have taken into
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the hasis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 63.11 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabtlities, other infarmation accompanying
the financial staterments, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of ane year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that atl liabilities falling due within
a period of cne year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

{a} In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act {the Act), in compliance with second
proviso to sub section 5 of sectien 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

{b) There arg no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6} of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

The Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements, hence the requirement to report on
clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN No

. 002381C/N500069

Partner

Spreet Singh Bedi

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 22601788AJKIVE4894

Place: Mumbai

Date; 23 May 2022
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“ANNEXURE 2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report an the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

To
The Member of
Adani Capital Private Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Adani Capitat Private Limited {"the
Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company
for the yvear ended on that date.

Management’s Respansibility for Internal Financial Cantrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrels based on
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of
the accounting recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinlon on the Company's internal financial contrals over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controds, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Contrals and, both issued by the
[ngtitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether adeguate
internal financial cantrols aver financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contraols
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reperting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessad risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Staternents,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internai financial controls system over financial reporting.

13 Floor, B Wing, Perinsitla Business Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Farel, Mumbai - 200 013, India
P81 22 61737000 491 22 6173 7060

LLF Registration NO.AAR1379
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NANGIA & CO LLP

Wieaning of Internal Financial Caontrals Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and pracedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasenable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispasitions of the assets of
the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directers
of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS Finaneial
Statements.

Irherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reparting

Because of the inherent fimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the passibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to errae or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financtal controls over tinancial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

DOpinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systerm aver
financial reporting and such internal financizl contrals aver financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2022 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
QOver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0023291C/N500069

/ laspreet Singh Bedi
Partner
Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 22601788AKIVE4ASB4

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2022



ADAN] CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Belance Sheet as at March 33, 2022
fAll amountt In Re. fn Millions unfess ctherwlse stated)

ASSETS

Financial assets

{3) Cash and cash equivalents 7 4,138 80 1,431.53
(Bl Bank balances othar than £ash and cash equivalents 4 1,281.81 -
{e)  Receivables
{1} Trate recaivables & 7.29 195
{dl  hoans 10 18,782, 78 11,652.66
{e} Other financial assets 11 33777 184.61
w4,546.25 13,270.75
Nuti-finands) psaets
(8)  Current tax assots inet) 12 3B.66 37.59
(&) Peferred rax assets [net) 13 - 19.48
(z]  Property, ptant and eguipment 11 304,78 192.90
{d} Camtal work-in-progress 15 018 -
(e) Intangible assels under development 16 2338 0.05
{f}  Other intangible assots 17 122.77 133.7
(g}  Other non-financial assats 18 67.66 30.08
wwwwwwwwwwwwwwww N 557.4% 41380
TOYAL ASSETS 2510363 13,684.65
WABILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES

Findncial llabilitiey

{4}  Payables 19
{ilTrade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of sicto enterprises and small eaterprises .

{it) total putstanding dues of ereditars other than micro enterprisos 63,19 65.89

and smah enkarprises
{H) Other payables
(i} tatak sutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises - [0
(ii} totm outstanding dues of craditors other than micre enterprises E¥:L 5493
anif smalk enterprises
fh)  Dobtsecurities 20 251169 2,516.71
{c] Borrowings {other than debt securities) 21 16,116.17 7.2B4.05
d) Subordinated Rabilities 22 336.96 -
(¢} Other financial Hatilities 23 51165 01,79
15,841, 71 10,074.37

Nom-finandial lisbilitles

lal  Provislons 24 47,27 46.06
{b} Daferred tax ligbifities {ret) 13 113 -
le}  Other non-fimancial Sabliities 15 77.23 6182
141.63 107.85
EQLHTY
{2} Equity share capital 26 217,58 173.00
{b) Other equity 7 4,882.79 3,329.33
5,120.34 3,502.33
TOTAL DABILITIES AND EQUITY 25,103.68 13,584,645
The accampanying notas form an integral part of the finaneial statementy i-68

This i5 the Balance Shaet referred ko i our repoit of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Adan Capital Private Limited
€IN: UB5990GI20L5PTCO33692

My s S S . ?\@d/“ -
X it
F. Gaurdy Gupta . Sagar R. Adanl

Manauing.ﬁlf;scmr & CEO Director
Gtn: prsEYio9 DIN: 076268229
Pace: Mumbal Place: Ahtnedabad

K
g
M Viral § Mr. litendra Chaturvedi
Chief Eiranclal Officer Company Secretary
Memberznlp No: A5158

Date: May 23, 3032 t Place: Mumbai Place: Mutntai

For Mangla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Ficr Registratign Numbegr; H02391C/NE00065

Tast Singh Bedi

Membership No: 601788

Fiace; Mumbat




ADANI CARITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Lats for the year ended March 33, 2022
{all gmaounts ln Rs. in Mifions umdess etherwie stated}

arch 31,2021
Revenue From operations
[f} Fnterestincome 28 2,292.57 1,764.57
{H)  Met gain oo fals valug changes 29 3031 15,38
(i) Net gain on derecognition of financlal insteurments under amortised cost categury 56,6 208.31 127,29
i Totaf revenue from cparations 2,531.69 1,907.35
{H}) Cther tncome 30 10.26 1.5
(11} Tatal income {1 + 1) 2,541.95 1,814.76
Expifigis
{1} Finance costs 31 1,674.14 850.90
{it} Impairment or finandial instruments 32 115.63 47.03
i) Employae benelits expenes 32 780.30 546.53
{iv} Depraclation, amartization and Impaitment a3 70,98 57.54
v} Others cxpenies 35 261.34 231,53
{iv} total expenzes 2,422.39 1,113.53%
(V) Profit before tax (1 - V) 119.58 01,23
{Vi} Tax Expanse:
- Clgrrent Tax 39 1233 11.30
- beferred Tax A9 35.30 2018
(Vit) Profit for the periad (Vo) 71493 162.77
{Mi) Other comprehensive income
{1 1tems that will not be reclassified to profit ar losa
{#) Remeasyremerts gain / {loss) on defined berefit plans 5.19 (2.31)
{ii) Income tax relating to ftems that whi not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.31) 068
Gther comprehensive tneome / {loss) (MNet of tax) 388 10,23}
{IX} Total comprehensive meame for the period (VIE+ Vitl) 75,81 162.54
{X) Eamings per equity share [Face Value Rs 10 per share} a8
- Basic {Rs.} 4,15 o941
- Diluted [Rs.) £.14 9.40
The accompanylng notes form an intggral part of the financial statemeots 1-65

This i3 the Staterment, of Profit and Loss referrad 1o in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants : Adani Capltal Privete timited
ICAl Firm Registration Nu D2391C/NSOI06S CIN; LIGE00GR016FTCRI300)
/

", i P
NN
+ Gaumy HFW

Menoging Dirsctor & CEQ
DIN: 0166910% .
Plice: Murnbai

A

rtner
Memibharship Mo; BNLTER

Fhiage: Murribrai Mr. Virg)Shah
Chief Fingncial Qfficer
Date: May 23, 2022 Place: Mumbal

For and an behalf of thi Boxnd of Directors of

SPH——

Mr, Sagar R, Adanl
Diractur

DIN: 07626229
Place: Ahmedabad

W?.OU

Mr. ditendra Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
Mambership Mo; Ad515E
Place: Mumbal




ADANI CAFITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash fiows for the year endad March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in K. in Millions unless gtherwise stated}

A, Cash flow operating activities

Profit hefore tax 119.56 21213
Adjustments for:

Bepreclation, amortization and Impairment 70.98 57.54
tmpairment of financial instrument 60.14 27.65
Interest on tease liabillty 17,62 15.08
Interast on income tax refund {2.56) -
Profit on sala of mutual funds (30.31) {3490
Share based payment to employees 30,91 30.39
Remeasurements of the definaed benetit plans - gratuity 510 (031}
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category {208.81) {127.29)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {0.04) (2.02)
Irterast incorme {2,282.57) [1,764.57)
Einance Cost 1,056.52 B3s.gz2
Cacsh inflow from interegt 2,245.70 1,731.62
Cash outflow from finance cost (1,051.36) {BA4.62)
Cash generatad from operations before working capital changes 20,97 1435.62
Adjustments far chanpes in Working Capital :

Decrease f {Increase} in Trade receivable [5.59) 116
Decrease f {Incraase) in Loans {7,048.55) (1,546.54)
Ducrease / {ncrease) in Other financial assets {29.28) {3.00}
bacrease [ {Ingrease} tn ther non-finarnclial assets {B0.25} (50.66}
{Decrease) / Increase in Trade payables (777} 24.26
{Decrease] / Incraase in Other financial liabilities 524,50 59.54
{Dacrease) / Increase in Pravisions 1.21 23,89
{Decrease) / Increase in Other non-financial liabilities 1533 (3.46)
Net cash ganerated from f (used in) operation [6,579.43) {1,349.19)
Refund / (Paymant) of taxes {net} {13.40) 9.61
Net cash generated from [ (used (n) operating activities [A) [6,592.83) {1,339.58)
B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment (61.79) (1.22)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.17 -
Purchase of intangible assets (5.45) {39,48)
Purchase of capital work-in-progress (0.18) .
(Purchase)/sale of Intangible assets under development (23.29) B.78
Investrmient it bank deposits with original maturity greater than three ronths (Net} (1,281.61} -
Purchase of investments in mutual funds {20,566.50} {17,798.00)
Sale of investments In mutuat funds 20,596.81 18,263.41
Net cash generated from / {used tn} Investing actlvities (#) {1,341.84) 433,49




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LINHTED

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amgunts in Rs. ia Millions unless otherwise stated)

C. Eash flow from financing activities

Pracesds from issua of Equity Shares {tncluding securities premium) 1,500.00 .
Paytment of principal portion of lease liabilitias (23.59) {18.21)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities (17.62) (15.08}
1ssue of debt secuntios 980.00 2,500.00
Repaymant of bocrowing from debt securities {1,000.00) {980.00)
Issue of subordinated liabilities 350.00 -
Proceeds fram borrowing (other than debt securities) 12,240.00 4,069.00
Repayment of borrowlng {other than debt securities) (3,388.85) (4,210.95)
Met cash generated from / (used in) financing activities {C) 10,639.94 1,344.76
Net Increase f (Decreasa) In Cash and Cash Egulvalents (A + B + £) 70527 438.67
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of year 1,431.53 992.85
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,136.80 1,451.53
Components of Cash and cash equivalants
Cash op hand .84 0.46
Balarices with banks 3,133,868 481.00
Fixed deposit with bank (Original maturity less than 3 months) 1000119 950,07
4,135.80 1,431.5%

The above Statement of cash flow hos been prepared under the indirect methad set out in Ind AS 7 - Stotement of Cash Flow,

For disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer Note 37

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to In our raport of evan date

for Nangia & Co. LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Atcountants Adani Capital Private Limited
ICAL Firm Ragistratioh er: D02331C/N500068 CIN: USS990G1 2016 TC002692

5 ) N
M. laspreat Singh Bad| . Gaura Gugm Mr. Sagar R, Adani

Partner Mandaging Dirbetar & CEC DRirectar
Membership No: 601788 DIN: 016691059 DIN: 07626229
Place: Mumbat Place: Ahimedabad

Placa: Mumbal
Chief Financial Officer Campany Secretary

Date: May 23, 2022 Place: Mumbai Place; Mumbai

Mr.%al ah Mr. litendra Chaturved]

Membership No: A45158



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity far the year ended March 31, 2022

{All amounts in #s. in Millions unless atherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
Particutars s Asat s ot
: Lo . March 31, 2022 March 31, 202),
Balance at the beginning of the reporting peciod 173.00 173.0d)
Changes in equity share capital due to prior periad errors . -
Restated balance at the beginning of the curcent reporting pesiod 173.00 173.00
Changes in equity share capital {Refer Nate 26 (A) for odditionol details) 54.55 -
Balance at the ead of the reparting period 227.55 173.00
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus -
L _ --| Spucial Reserve undar . K 'xi-Sha:‘r;: ‘nbﬁon L
Pan‘l‘ct‘nl‘nr‘s‘ . Securlties pramium : ’Em?n As-IE of the ketalnad éamings 6ut4taﬁdlng aecourt | ?qml-l :
[ Sl Resetve P IR A T

, L | ank of India Act, 1934 RN R T
Balance at Aprif I, 2020 3,128.76 19.35 {18.46) 3,125.65
Profic for the year - - 162.77 - 162,77
Share based payment expenss A - - 3714 37.14
Gther comprehensive income for the year (.23} {D.23)
Total comprehensive income for the year (het af
tan) - - 162.54 714 150,68
Transfer [ atifisations
transferred to special regerve from retained
earnings - 32.55 [42.55) - .
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,128.76 53.50 111,53 7,14 3.319.33
Profit for the year - - 7193 7193
Fremium on Issue of equity shares 1,445.45 " . 1,445.45
Share based payment expense - . 42.30 AL.20
Other comprehensive Ineorme for the year - 388 - 3,88
Tatet corprehensive inctene for the year {not of
tan} 1,445.45 - ¥5.81 4330 1,563.46
Teansfar / utllisatlons
Transferred to special reseive froem retained
CACNINES - 14.39 (14.39} -
Balance at March 31, 2022 4,574.21 66,29 172.95 79.34 4,892,139

This is the Statement of Changes in Egquity refarrad to In our report of even date

For Nangta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants”

ICAl Firm Regigiration pumber: 0023918/ N500069

e
U lasprest Singh Bedi
artner

Membership Na; 601788

Mace: Mumbal

Date: May 23, 2022

™

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Adanl Capital Private Limited
CiN: UBS980GI0) GPTLORS6SR

3
™

I\';Mau‘l:'aﬁ‘ﬁpta‘_w‘x

Mongging Dirgttér & CEQ
DIN: 116R910%9
Mace: Mumbal

Mr. Viral Shah
Chief Financiol Officer

Place: Mumbai

§

Mr. Sagar &, Adanl|
Director

DiN: 07626225
Place: Ahmedabad

AN £,
M, Jitendra Chaturvedi
Compuny Seeretiry
Membership No: A45158
Place: Mumbal




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Significant Accounting Policies:

1L

Corporate Information:
Adani Capital Private Limited {the ‘Company’) was incorporated in india on September 12, 2016 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’).

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company holds a Certificate of Registration {CoR) as Non-Banking Financial Institution, without
accepting public deposits, registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("RB1"} under section 45-1A of the
Resetve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company received its certificate of registration as a non-banking
finance Cornpany on January 6, 2017 having registration number B.01.00567.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adani Finserve Private Limited,

The Registered office of the company is Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat - 380009.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised for issue in
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 23 May 2022,

Basis of Preparation:

The financlat statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amanded
from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instrurments such as, other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at fair
value. The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest Millions, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis,

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabiities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note & - Significant
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Presentation of financial statements:

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Il (Division 11} of the Companies
Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA). Financial assets
and financial liabilities are generally reparted on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

4.1 Functional and presentation currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also its functional currency and
all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

5. Significant accounting policies:

5.1 Revenue from operations:

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

Recognition of interest income:

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective interest Rate {EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets
classified as measured at FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

= As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

= By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
tha cash flows

= Including all fees received/paid between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts,

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest
incorme with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets,

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
10 the net amortised cost {net of expected credit loss) of the financial asset. i Financial Asset
iz cured and is no longer credit impaired, the Company starts calculating interest incame on
gross basls. '

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized

a. When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity and

c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

Fees and Commission income:

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
abligation, at fair vélue of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step
model as set aut below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:




ADANI{ CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceabla rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in & contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a petformance obligation

5.2 Financial instruments:

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and Wabilities, with the exception of loans and borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans are recognised when funds are
transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowings when funds are
available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financlal Hability are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liahilities recorded at fair valtue through
profit & loss (FVTPL)), are added to or subtracted from the falr value of financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss:

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair valug at origination and
the fair value is based on a valuation technigque using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference hetween the transaction price and fair
vam? net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

5.2.4

for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference hetween the transaction
ptice and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categeries of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all its financial assets based on the business madel for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it Is hefd within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely for the payments of
principal and interest on the principal amaunt outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial assets that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that
reprasent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, The
changes in falr value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income,

Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit & loss {FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measuras all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

£.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

531

5.3.2

Financial assets held for trading:

The Campany classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of
a recerd pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and
measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain
on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
oh issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

5.3.3

534

535

Here debt securities and other borrowed funds also include non — convertible debenture,

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVYTPL on initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
reguired to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrurment at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined or an instrument-by-instrument basis:

v+ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or Habilities or recognising gains or
fosses on them on a different basis, or

+ The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documentad risk
management ot investment strategy, or

+ The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unlass they do not
significantly modify the cash fiows that would otherwize be required by the contract,
or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements
in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company's own credit
risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCl and do
not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earmed or incurred on instruments designated
at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into
account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of
instrurnent. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL Is
recorded using contractual interest rate.

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. Currently Company has not recognised any ECL in respect of undrawn
commitment

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:Financial instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financlal liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its labilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company ave
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments and
financial guarantees.
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5.4 Reclassification of financizl assets and financial liabilities:

The Company does not reclassify Its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
fine. The company didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and
previous period.

5.5 Derecognition of financial assets and Habilities:

55.1

Derecognition of financial asset:

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financtal asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Campany has transferred the financial asset if and anly if; either

» The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

s It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but
assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay
to third party under ‘pass through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a Financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual
recipients’), when all of the following conditions are met:

» The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term
advances with the right to full recovery of the amount fent plus accrued interest at
market rates,

» The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients,

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material defay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of reguired remittance to the eventual
recipients.

Atransfer only qualifies for derecognition If either;
» The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

« The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferrad control of the asset.
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The Campany considers contral to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without impasing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financlal assets are classified as Stage
1 far ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be purchased
or originated credit impaired (POCH).

if the modification does not result In cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

5.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabllities:

A Financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the hability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same fender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of' a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial lability and the consideration paid, including modified
contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit
and loss.

5.6 Impairment of financial assets:
Overview of ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets
not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘Financial
Instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

ECL is a probahility-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an antity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive discounted at the originat effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount
and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than
when contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Cornpany to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
irmpairment loss allowance. However, if receivables contain a significant financing component, the
Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general
approach to measure ECL.
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General Approach

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLis the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent
the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date.”

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-meonth ECLs are calculated on a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has grouped its loans into
corporate loans, business loans given to MSMEs (MSME), home loans, commercial vehicle loans and
supply chain finance.

The Company has established a policy 1o perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase In credit
risk at a barrower level,

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
belaw:

Stage 1

AN exposures where there has not been a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL (resulting from default events possible
within 12 months frorm reporting date) are recognized.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Assets which are 30 Days Past Due and less
than 90 Days Past Due are considered as significant increase In credit risk. For these assets lifetime
£CL are recognized. ‘

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of Expected Credit Loss)
rather than the gross carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a
financial instrument as credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets

"t each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt financial assets carried at FVOC) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired’
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when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
= Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
+ A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

+  The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would
not consider otherwise;

s It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

*+ The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficutties.”

The calculation of ECL

"The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key glernents are, as follow

Probability of Default

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizan. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously derecognized and is still in the portfolia. In the absence of sufficient history of default the
company has primarily sourced the PDs from external default reports published by various rating
agencies,

Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Default {FAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facHities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss piven Default

The Lass Given Default {LGD} is an estimate of the Joss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed
as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a) In case of Commercial vehicle and Farm Equipments portfolio the LGD percentage s
determined based on the recovery experience from closed cases.

b} tncase of loans to MSME Sectar and term loans to Corporate customers the LGD percentage
is determined based on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of coliateral after
considering reasonable haircuts as determined appropriate by the management where latest
fair value of collateral is not avatlable with the management.

¢} In case of other portfolios proxy LGD percentage as prescribed by the regulatory authority
{FIRB Approach) is considered. :
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Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
? or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recopgnition. in assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Company considered rebuttable presumption that credit risk on & financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

5.7 Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
the collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, vehicles,
real estate, etc. Collateral, untess repossessed, is not recorded on the Company's balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the caiculation of ECLs. The collateral are assessed at
time of inception and are being reassessed as and when required.

5.8 Collateral repossessed:

In its normal course of business, the Company engages external agents to repossess and recover
funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not
recorded on the balance sheet,

£.9 Write-offs:

5.10

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonahble expectations of recovering a financlal asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs.
Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair value;

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurernent is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either,

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is rmeasured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. in order to show how fair values have been derived,
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5.11

financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised
below:

Levet 1 financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
ldentical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
cansiders markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume
and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price
quotes availabie on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life, Such
inputs include guoted prices for similar assets or liakilities In active markets, quoted prices for
identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may
be required for the condition or location of the asset ar the extent to which it relates to items that
are comparable to the valued instrument. However, If such adjustments are based on unobservable
inputs which are significant to the entirg measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as
Level 3,

Level 3 financial instruments

Thase that inchude one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred hetween levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
model calibrations, Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk
associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a porifolio-based
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the
individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments,

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrurment basis
and reclassifies instrurnents when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leases:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities representing
obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets,
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5.12

5.11.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

£.11.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The kease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lgase payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses 115 incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate impliclt in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the jease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasurad if there is a modification, a change in tha lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an Index or rate vsed
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an aption to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in Other Financizl Liabilities.

5.11.3 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings per share;

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Difuted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur ¥ securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the
year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
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5.13

5.14

and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued ugon conversion of all
potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The financial Statements are presented in indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the
Company. Transactfions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary iterns that are measured in terms of historical cost in & forelgn currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Employes benefit expenses:

5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits:
Defined contribution schemes

The Company contributes {0 a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid In exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as
an expense during the period when the employees render the services

5.14.2 Post-employment benefits:

Defined benefit schemes - Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the amployees have earned in réturn for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan
is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
raturn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
hability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained sarnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods.
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5.14.3  Gther long-term employee benefits:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitfement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent
actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

5.14.4 Employee share-based payments:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees providing services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination
of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments transactions are set out in Note
55,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share based payments is
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the ariginal estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

5.15 Property, plant and equipment:

All iterns of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and incidental expenses directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management.

Changes In the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, as and when they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which Is in line with the estimated
useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013

As per the requirement of Schedule Hl of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule {1
for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:
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5.16

5.17

Nastureofassets . . | Estimated useful lives . . -
Office equipment S years |

Computer Systems — End User Devices 3 years

Computer Systems — Servers & Networks 6 years

Electrical tnstallation 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office Premises On the lease term

The residuat values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future econamic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets Is derecognised at the time of
replacernent thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the
arnortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
futere economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortization
petiod or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in
the statement of profit and loss.

intangibles such as software are amartised over a period of 10 years based on its estimated useful
life,

Gaing or losses from deracognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Staternent of Profit
and Loss when the asset Is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there Is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
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amount of cash generating unit which the asset belengs to is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced {0 ifs recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
foss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed, and the impairment is reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before
impairment.

5.12 Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obiigation (legal or constructive) as a
resuit of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be reguired to settle the obligation, and a
tellable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an apprepriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present ohligation that arises from past events, where it is either not prabable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amaount cannot be made, is disclpsed
as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
eccurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the Company.
Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement Is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not & contingent asset and is recognized.

5.19 Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of corrent tax and deferred tax.

5121 Current tax:

Current tax Is recognised in statement of profit or toss, except when they relate to items
that are recognlsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

5.19.2 Deferred tax:

Deferved tax Is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and Nabilities and their carrylng amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss,
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5.20

5.21

5.22

Deferred tax assets are recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit and loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reparting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit
and loss (either in other comprehensive income or In equity), Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in QCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the sarme tax authority.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:
Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets ar services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax pald is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

*  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payahle to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Securities issue expenses:

Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue of Share capital are adjusted against Securities
premium reserve,

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-tarm deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
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term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

5.23 Cash-flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions;

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with the Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptians are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
pericds are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:
6.1.1 Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPL) and the business modei test. The Company determines the business
model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistant with the abjective of the husiness for which the
asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessrment of whether the business
modet for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a pmspectwe change io the
classification of those assets.

6.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have & significant risk of causing a material
adjustmant to the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year,
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described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the cantrol of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

6.2.1  Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another vatuation technigque. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation i3 required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

6.2.2  Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 5.1, recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and
penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

6.2.3 Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgment,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining Impalrment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result In different levels of
allowances.

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumgptions
regarding the chotce of variable inputs and thelr interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

v PO calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions,

» The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment.

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
+ Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

* Determination of associations hetween macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD
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+ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

» The impact of COVID -12 on the global economy and how government, business and
consumer is uncertain This uncertainty Is reflected in the Company’s assessment of
fmpairment allowance on its loans which are subject to 2 number of management judgement
and estimated. While methodologies and assumption applied remains unchanged. Company
has separately incorporated estimates, assumption and judgements specific to the impact of
CQVID -19 pandemic.

In terms of the requirements as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on implementation of Indian
Accounting standard , Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment aliowance under Ind A5 109 and Income
Recognition , Asset Classification and Provisioning {IRACP) norms (including provision on standard
assets). The impairment allowance under Ind A5 109 made by the company exceeds the total
provision required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), as at 31 March 2022 and
accordingly, no amaunt is required to be transferred to impairment reserve.

tt is Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

6.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying armount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to is recoverable amount.

6.2.5 Provision and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk Inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probahle, the Company records a provision against the case,
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed,

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates,

6.2.6 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgement on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained ip tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial timpact on the
Comgpany and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

6.2.7 Leases - Estimating the Incremental Borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have {o pay to borrow over a similar termn, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environrnent, The {BR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no ohservable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditlons of the lease, The Company estimates the {BR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

6.2.8 Leases - Estimate of lease period

ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised,

6.2.9 Share-Based Payments:

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate valuation
model. The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with Option hoiders using
Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date,

Inputs into the valuation model, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend vield.

Further details used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 5.14.4,

6.2.10 Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical obsolescence,
nature of assets, estimated usage of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’
warranties, maintenance and support period, etc, The charge for the depreciation is derived after
considering the expected residual value at end of the useful life.

The residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Further details about property, plant and equipment are given in Note 14,

6.2.11 Defined benefit plans (gratuity and compensated absences benefits)

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actuat developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future

-
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salary Increases, attrition rate and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, these liabilittes are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencles consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly avaitable mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further detaits about gratuity obligations are
given in Note 38,
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7 Lash and cash aquivalents

Particulars o ooAsRL L AREE T
el SR L . March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
tash on hand 2.84 0.46
Balances with banks 313380 481.00
Fixed deposit with bank for erigieal maturity loss than 3 menths (including Interest accrued) 1,000.10 960,07
Total 4,136,580 1,431.53
8 8ank balances other than cosh and cash equivalents
Particulars et T T T Asa
Lol e R ‘| March 31, 2027 | March 31, 2021
Short-terrn deposits with banks (including interest accrued) 1,230.74 -
Long-term deposits with basks {In¢lding interest accrued) 50.87
Total 1,361.61 -
9 Receivablas
§. Trade Racaivables
Partlr,ulm ." o)l ARar T ASEE
- . . . ety Wfarch 31, 2022 | sarch 31, 2021
Cunsndmud goud Secured . -
Considered good - Unsecured 7.61 i
Grass tradd receivables 7.61 .00
Lecs: Aflawarnice far Expected Credit Losses {0.32) {.07)
Total trade receivables (nat of impairment} 7.20 1.85

2, Beconciliation of impatrmant allowance on trade recaivables:

'.Furthevear .
1 endad
March!‘.t 2022 Man:h 31, 2021

Particulurs

Impairment allowance 35 par simplified approach

Opening Balance 0.07 .08
Add/{tess): On Assets originated or acquired {net} .25 {0.02)
Closing Balanca 0.32 D.O7

No trode or other receivable are due from directors ar other officers of the company either severolly or jointly with any other parson. Nov any frade or ather
receivable are due from firms or privete companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or o member.

b. Trada receivables ageing schedule

L T R S . ﬂutmndtngfarfollawingpnriodsfrumdun dateufpa\rmant - Lo
CAsatMarch3L2022 - “Lass thanﬁ Smonths* K Mnm thand | - -Totat.'
R : ‘months 1year . '3- ) “'Zyeam ‘ -EVEN‘!‘- ‘yearg R
Congiderad good - Secured - - . v - -
fansidared good - Unsecured 7.46 .07 .12 . . .61
Grass trade receivalilas .46 0.q2 6.33 - - .61
Less: Allowange for Expected Credit Losses 10.32)
Total trade recalvables (net of impairment) 7.29
R S Qutstanding farfultuwingperlodsfram duu dateufpwmmt RN BT
o Asat M?F"*“ 31,'2,0?; SRR ‘-‘lmssthans : .E Herths - . 1_”6“ 3a yaars | Mum ihanﬂ‘ 1 Tatal -
: : . . months 1 . 1year years
Considered good - Secured - » v B - -
Considered good « Unseeured 1.3% 0.67 - - - 2.62
Gross trade receivables 1.3% 0.67 u u - 2.02
Loss: Allowance for Expacted Credit Losses (0.6
Total trada recelvabies {net of impairment) 145
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10 Loans
B Cipsat oo U Asat
. particulars - _March 31,2022 1 - March 31, 2021
R I Amortised gast .| Amortised cost ©
{A) Loans 19,019.30 11,829.29
Total - Gross (A} 19,019.30 11,829.29
Less: Impairment loss allowance {236.52) (176.63)
Total - Net of impairment lass allowance (A) 18,782.78 11,652.66
{B) (i} Secured by tangible assets 16,188.32 9,325.85
(i) Unsecured 2,830.98 2,503.44
Total - Gross (B) 19,019.30 11,829,29
Less: Impairment loss allowance {236.32) {176.63}
Tetal - Net of impairment foss allowance (B) 18,782.78 11,652.66
{C) Lteoansin India
{1} Public sectors - -
(i1} Others 19,019.30 11,829.29
Total - Gross {C) 19,019.30 11,829.29
Less: Impairment loss aliowance (236.52) {176.63)
Total - Net of Impairment loss allowance {€) 18,782.78 11.652.66
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Other financial assets
: Asat o Asat
p | = : L :
articulars . March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Securlty Deposits 15.87 10.48
Excess Interest Spread (£15) Receivables 233.76 121.81
Other receivables fror related parties (Refer Note 49) 83.85 51.38
Others 4,29 0.96
Total 332017 1584.61
12 Current tax assets (net)
Lo Asat L cAsat
Particulars March 31, 2022 “March 31, 2021
Advance income taxes 38.66 375y
(Net of pravision for tncome tax Re. 36.82 milllans {previous year Rs.
24,30 mithons)
Total 38.66 37,59
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13 Deferred tax

The major tompanents of deferred tax assets / (fiabilitles) arlsing on account of timing differences are as follows:

As at March 31, 2023

e AS ut Recognised in profit] - -Recognised . As at March 31,
Particulars . . . : ; :
AR Aprll 03, 2021 of logs e Ge - g022
Deferred 1ax assets
Impairment loss on financlal assets 41,74 10,35 - 52.03
EIR impact on financial instruments 5.68 D.46 6.14
Impact of Leases 4,23 2.44 . 6.67
Retiretment benefit plans 4.26 4.95 {31 11,50
{A) 59.91 18,20 (1.31) 76.80
Deferred tax liabilitias
Diffarance betwewn written down vatue of fixed assets a5 per the books 9.08 188 - 10.93
of accoents and income tax
ER impact on barrowings C.69 23.47 - 24.16
Impact of direst assignment transactions 066 2B.18 - 58,84
{B) 40.43 53.50 - 95.03
Beterred tax assets / (liabilities) {net) {A-8}] 19.48 | {35.36] [LEH] [27.13)
A ot Masch 21, 2022
T Asat . | Recognised in profit] - Recognised |- As gt March 33,
Paetitulars 0 T ‘ ‘ bt PR DEMRTTAEE L P A e "
i L April 03, 2020 -of loss i IRERRT 111 - IRt IR - | |
Beferred tax aszats
Impalrment loss on financial assets 32.41 533 - a3.74
EIR Impact on financiat instruments B.A8 (2.80} .68
Impact OF Laasos 293 1.30 - 4.23
Retirement hanefit plans 6.16 2.02 0.08 8.26
Unused tax cradits 5.40 (540} - -
{a) 58.34 445 0.08 59.91
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books h6& 3.43 " 9.08
of accownts and income tax
EIR impact on horrowlngs 3.04 {2.35) - .69
impact of direct assignment transactions . 30.66 30.66
(13 {0-13} "
{B) 8.82 21,61 - 40.43
Defarred tax assats / (liabilities) (net) (A-BH 46.55 | (27.15” 0.08 I 19.48
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(ANl amounts in Rs. in Millians unless otherwite stated)

15 Capital-Work-In Prograss

Ageing schedule a3 at 33 March 2022
o S o L AmountinthPiurnpertodof e o .
Particulars o Lol e o Maorethand | . Towml |
' Lessthanl'\fear 1—2 Years -3 Years [ S
Years
Projects i progress 0.18 - - - 0.18
Projects temporarily suspended " f . . R
Tatal 0.18 g - B 0.18
Ageing scheduls as at 31 March 2021
: A o ) 1. L Amount I CWIe for a pertod of IR o
Particulars B 1 Co ‘ . Totat
Lesa than 1 Year 1~2 Vaara :Z iVe.ars More than 3 ru‘
' Years
Projects in progress Y . . . -
Frojects tempararily suspended - - - B u
Total B - - - .

16 Intangible assets under development

Ageing schedule 85 at 31 March 2027
Amount in Intanﬁ]ble assets um:ler development for a perlod of - .
Particulars o i | Moreth 1 Totat
‘ Lessthanlvaar. -‘1~2‘laars ‘za‘vaan; oret a"a:‘ ST
I I T B . Years :
Projects in progress 23.38 - - . 1318
Prajacts temporarily suspended - - - - .
Tatal 23.38 - - - 23.38
h arch 202
R C S Amount L) Inmnglhleas:ets underdcv&lopmentfornperiod of . . ST
Particutars . .o e e . ] “'Morethan3 . | Total
S : l,essthan:n‘ear T2Vears |  23Yeas C o
: Years
Projects In progress 0,09 . - " 0.09
Projects temperarily suspended - - - .
Total 0.68 - - - 0.09




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in Rs. In Millions unfess otherwise stated)

17 Other intangible assets

Particulars "““Softwara i 3.- . 'futal ‘;':'f 3
Gross Block

As at April 01, 2020 122.08 122.08
Additions 39.48 39.48
Drisposals . -
As at March 31, 2021 161.56 161.56
Additions during the year 5.45 5.45
Disposals - .
As at March 31, 2022 167.01 167.01
Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization:

Opening balance 14.91 1491
Depreciation / Amortization for the year 12.89 12.89
Disposals - .
As at March 31, 2021 27.80 27.30
Depreciation / Arnortization for the year 16.44 16.44
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 44,24 44,24
INet book value

As at March 31, 2022 ‘ R e gy 0 122,77
AsatMarch31,2021 0T S a33 6 133,76

i




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rs, in Millions unless otherwise stated)

18 Other non-flinancial assets

Particulars - Asat cooAsat o

March 31, 2022 -March 31, 2021 -

Prepaid expenses 29.42 15.25
Balances with governament authorities 21.52 13.84
Others 16.72 0.9
Total 67.66 30,08
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ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal 3tatemaents for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts fie Ry, in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Payables
Particulars ‘ Asat ol o oAsat o
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade payables
(i) total outstarding dues of micrp enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 19 {a) befow,) . -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises £0.1% 65.89
60.19 65,89
Other Fayables
{i} total outstanding dues of micrs enterprises and small enterprises - -
{il} total putstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and smalf enterprises 3.85 593
5.85 5.93
Total 64,04 71.82
Information required 38 per section 22 of the Miceo, Small and Medium Enterprizes Bavelopment Act, 2006 {MSMED Act] pravided based on and to the

extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding thelr status under MSMED Act:

Pnrtl:ulars

AS tﬂ

- pareh 31, 2027

SAsEt L
Mmrch 31, 2021

Principal amount due to suppilers under MSMED AL, 85 at the year End {5|nce pah:!)

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount as at the year end
Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appainted day, during the year

Interast paid to suppiiers under MSMED Act {other than section 16)

Interest paid to supptiers under MSMED Act (section 16}

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MEMED Act, for paymeants already made
Interest accrued and rémaining unpaid at the year end to suppilers under MEMED Act

. Trade payables againg schedule

Clutstanr.ﬁng

fm' fatlnwing perluds fmm due date of payment -

L ;ﬁ”g M??F'Fa‘,*'-”’?*-.;=, L e Luss than Waar

1 2 yaars

Mnre than 3

years

Trade payables - Undisputad

{3} MSME - - - _
(i} Other than MSME &0.19 - g 60,19
Total 5019 - - 6,14
' ' o Outstandlng fur fﬂllawlng perlnds frﬂm auu ﬁatn of paymant e
AstM h31zz . 1 -
8k Mare D ’ ‘ Less lhan:year "4 2years Mure thand @ Total A
yaars
Trade payables - Undisputed
(i} MSME - - - N
(i} Othar than MSME B5.B% - - 65.89
Tatal 65.89 -




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

MNates to the Financial Statements for the year snded March 31, 2022
{All amaunts in Rs, in Miflions unless otherwise stoted}

20 Debt securitles

N S s st s b s
Particulars Co L Lo B o T o March 31, 2082 1 March 31, 2021

S “Amortlsed cost 1 | Amortised cost
Redeemakle non-canvertible debantures - Secured
Privately placed 1,511.69 2,516,7]
Total 2,511.69 2.516.71
Dabt Securities in ndia 2,511.64 2,516.71

Debt Secyrities cutside India -

Total 2,511.64 2,516.71

a. Maturity prafile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars : N - | Eate of interest ~ Maturity - Armiount
Repayable in singhe
Privately placed nan-tonvertible debenturas - ¢ B.15% instalment on 18 May 1,040.00
2022
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debenturas - 3 5.50% Instalment on 29 fune 500.00
2023
Repayable In single
Privately placed non-convertible debenturas - 4 B.60% instalment on 13 98000
Dutcernber 2022
2!480.00
Agd: Intarest acerued and offective Interest rate amortisation 31.68
1,511 64
As ay March 33, 3033
Particubars : ) R o i L Rirte of interest Maturity _Amouat
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible gobentures « 1 1.75% instalment on 21 1,000.00
lanuary 2023
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 2 B.15% instatment an 18 May 1,000.00
022
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 3 2.50% instalment on 24 lune 500.00
2023
2,500.80
Add: Interest acceued and effective Interest rate amortisation 16.71

b. Nature of Security :
Redeemabla non-convertible debentyres which have boen privately placed are secured by hypothecation of Loan Receivables & Investment Receivables of the
company (o the extent of .2x times.
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amaunts ia Rs, i MIlltONS wiiless atherwise stated)

Borrowings {other than dabt securities)
T Asot -
Particulars Maveh 31, 2023 Muareh 31, 2021
Amortised cost Amortised oot
Socured
Term l[Ban
- from banky 14,933,565 6,783.80
- from financlal InstHutians #7999 492,86
Linsecured
Term loans
- featn financial ingtitutions 273 139
Total 16,116.37 7,204.05
Borrawings in India 16,116.57 7,284.05
Borraowings oulbsides india - -
Total 16,115.37 7,284.05
2, Maturity profile and rate of interest of barrowings from banks and other parties gre set out belaw:
As st Mareh 31, 2032
Bartleutars Rate of interest ‘ .. Maturity IR ED LY TP
N S -1 Year 1 -3 Yeary 3-5Years - Total
Term Loans ram banks - Securad 5.00% to 10.20% & 642,15 5,4991.61 3,371.49 15 007.25
Term Loans fram financial institutions - Secured B.50% to 11.25% 564.23 616,67 - 1,180.90
Term Loans from financial ingtitntions - Linseeured 9.48% 273 . - 213
) 15:190.33
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation {?4.51)
16,115.37
Attt Miarch 31,2023
Farticulnrs Kate of interest . Matority : — e
0-1 Yaar 1 =3 Years 3 -5 Yeary ‘ Tl -
Tarm Loans from banks « Secured B 21% to 10.20% 2 £34.55 3,128.89 1,075.86 §,819.30
Term Loans fram financial institutlons - Secured 30.00% to 11.25% 260163 231.17 - 49180
Tarm Leans from finanelal institutions « Unsecured S.48% 4.66 273 - 1.38
?:333,49
Add: Interest accrued and effective Interest rate amaortisation {50.44)
7,284.05

. Nature of Security ;

Turtn Ioan from banks aré secured by hypothecation of Loan Recelvables & investment Recelvables of the company.

¢. The borrowlngs have aot been guaranteed by directors or cthers, Alse the Company has not defauited in repayment of barrowings and interest,




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Finandlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in Rs. in Millions viless otharwise steted}

22 Subordinated labilities

T : SR e e e : "'As;nt-':"""?;- S Asat
Farticulars . L P R March 31,2022 1 March 1, 2021
: : B B o ‘ " Amortised cost ~ | Amortlzed cost
Unsecurad
Privately placed subordinated {Thar H} redeemable non-convertible debentires 336.96 B
Fotal 336.96 -
Subordinated Liabifities in india 336.96 -
Subordinated Llahitities outside India - -
Totai 336.96 -
. Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinatad liabilities are st sut below:
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars I Rate of interest Maturity . Amaount
Repayabie in single
Privately placed subordinated [¥ier U} redeemahle non-convertible debentures 5.75% instalment on 30 350,00
—_— November 2028
350.00
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation {13.04)
336,96

y
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All amounts in Bs. in Millions unless otherwise stoted)

Other financial liabilities
Particulars coeb o Asat o CAsat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Lease Liahility fRefer Note 50) 225,10 147.64
Employee benefits payable 3.47 1.43
Other Payables 584.08 h2.72
Total 812.65 - 201,79
Provisions
Paniculars o C . Asat i S . Asat
‘ ' ‘ March 31, 2022 ‘March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 38) 16.79 11.84

Compensated Absences (Refer Note 38) 30,48 20.96

Performance Linked Incentive - 13.26
Total 47.27 46.06
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars A Co  Asar o -~ Asat

e ‘March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Statutory liabilities 24.54 11.09
Revenue recelved in advance 3.21 1.38
Others 49.48 49,42
Total 77.23 61.29




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates te the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs. in Millians unless otherwise stated)

26 Equity share capital

R L As at March 31, 2022 7 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars = . ‘ "~ Numirer Amount Mumber Amount
Authorised Capltal
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,00,00,000 300.00 2,00,00,060 200.00
3,00,00,000 300.00 2,00,00.000 A00.00
lssued, subscribed and fully pald up
£quity Shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 2,27,54,541 227.55 1,72,99,9495 173,00
2,27,54,541 222,55 1,72,99,006 174.00
L. Movemant in equlity share capital
‘ R : . ; - AS at March 31, 2022 o As at March 31, 2021
Partlculars o ' <l Number .. Amount | - Number ] .. Amount
Cutstanding at the heginning of the year 1,72,99,596 173.00 1,72,99,956 173.00
Shares Issued during the year 54,54,545 54.55 - “
Qutstanding at the ead of the year 1,27,54,541 227.55 1,72,99,996 173.00

Nates:
A, lssue of squity shaves

During year ended March 31, 2022, the company has itsuad 54,54,545 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 per share at a premium of Rs. 265
per share for aggregate consideration of Rs. 1,500,060 Million to its hofding company Adanl Finserve Private Limited,

B. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The campany has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
ane vate per share,

In the event of dquidation of the company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferentlal amounts, if any, in proportion ta the number of equity sharas held by the sharehotders,

C. Sharas hald by the holding company

As at Marr.'h 31, 2022 1 ... .. .AsatMarch 31,2021

Particutars et chones el - 92 Ratding
articutars : No,nfshare_sheld %Holdlng - Mo, of shares held| " % Holding

Holding Company
Adani Finserve Private timited 2,27,54,540 100.00% 1,72,99,995 1au.00%

Total 2,27,54,540 100.00% 1,72,99,995 100.00%

0. Details of shareholder(s) halding more than 5% of aquity shares in the company

 As at March 31, 2022 : As at March 31, 2021
Name of sharaholde ENEE . L o
I r No. of shares held % Holding No. of sharns held % Holdlng .
Equl £.10 sach fully paid u
Holding Company
Adani Finserve Private Limited 2,27.54,54¢ 100,009 1,72,99,995 100.00%
Tatal 2,27,54,540 100.00%, 1,72,59,395 100.00%

As per the records of the Company, Including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shamholders
regarding bepafieialinterast, the abave shareholding represents both lagal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
I,




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2022
Al ampunts in Rs. in Milllns unless otherwise stated)

26 Equity share capital {comtd...)

E. Shares held by the promotars

B R C Asat March 31,2022 -0
] Opening balanes | .~ - . LT R N
Particulars § Weeniily BdlAnee s : ‘ . R ‘
R of no. of sharas -] % of tota] shares Clostng balance of % of total shares %Fljange F‘“F"‘?S.
b o4 T no.ofsharesheld) — theyear ...
Promoters
Adani Finserve Private Limited 1,72,99,995 100.00% 2,27,54,540 100.00%, 31.53%
o E - ‘As at March 31, 2021
.| Opaning batance R A
Particulars 1" . : : :
K | of no. of shares | % of total shares |C10SINE balance of total shares % change during
ol T S | e of shares hetd R -the year
held
Promoters
Adant Finserve Private Limited 1,72,89,905 100.00% 1,72,99,995 100.00% 0.00%
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Finanpcial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2022

fAll amaunts In Rs. in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Other eguity
Particulars CoTAsat As at
' ‘March 31,2022 | March 34, 2001
L Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 3,128.76 3,128.76
Add : Pramium received on issue of securities 1,445.45 “
Closing Balance 4,574.21 3,123.76
IL Share hased payment resarve
Opening balance 37.14 -
Add; During the year 42,20 37.14
Clasing Balance 79.34 37.18
I Speciz) Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening balance 51.80 19.35
Add : Additions during the year 14.39 12 k5
Closing Balance 66.29 51.90
V. Impairment Reserve
Opening balance -
Add : Additions during the year - v
Closing Balance - -
V. Retained earnings
Opening balanca 111.53 (18.46)
Add : Profit for the year 7193 162.77
Add : Other comprehensive income 3.88 {0.23}
Amount available for approprizticn 187.34 144.08
Less: Apprapriations
Transfar to Special Rasarve u/s 45-1C of the Reserve (14.39) {32.58)
Bank of India Act, 1934
Closing Balance 172.85 111.53
Total Other Equity 4,892.79 3,329.33




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Naotes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All grmounts in As. in Milllons unless otherwise stated)

Securities premium reserve
The securitles premium reserve is used to recard the premivm received on issue of sharas, The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purpose such as issuance of boaus shares in accordance with provislon of the Companies Act, 2013,

Share based paymant Reserve

The Company has stock option scheme under which the eligible emplayees and key management personnel can exercise the
stock aptions granted and vested in them, On such exercise of the stack optlons the emplayees will be alfotted equity shares
of the Company. The share-based payment reserve 1s used 1o recognise the value of equity-settied share-based payments.

Statitory reserve
Reserve created under 45-1C(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit
every year as disclosed in the profit and ioss account and before any dividend Is declared.

Retained earnlngs

Retaingd earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are availsble for distribution to
sharehalders.




ADANI] CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notas to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al araounts in As. in Miflions uniess otherwise stated)

28

29

30

Interest income
o} o Year ended Yearended
3 S 1+ March 31, 2022 " ‘March 31, 2021 -
Particutars . . | Onfinancial assets | On financhat assets @
SRR .| measured at amortised | measured at amortised
: C rost C past
Interest on loans 2,166.08 1,688.58
Interest on fixed deposits 17.00 25.04
Dther Interest Income 109,49 50.95
Tatal 2,292 57 1,764.57
Net gain on fair value changes
ettt T | Yearended . . Vearended -
e S| U March 31,2022 | 0 March 31,2023 ¢
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
-On trading portfolio - -
<Investments 3031 1529
Total 30.31 15.39
Fair value changes
-Realised 30.31 15.39
-Unrealised - -
Total 30.31 15.39
Other income
Part'mltllél‘s‘ B L 3Yearéﬁded © " Year ended
o ‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on Income tax refund 2.56 .
Miscellaneous intome 71.70 751
Total 10.26 751
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All omounts In Rs, In Millions unless atherwise stated}

Finance costs

Péﬂln:lulars;. g

- Yearended

| mareh 34, 2022

" Yearended
March 31, 2021 -

* .| On financtal liabilitias °

©On financial labillties

:-l‘:. measured 'n.t‘um:nr.tlud‘ measured at amortisad
Ve cost tost

Intetest on borrowings B825.85 £40.56
Interest on debenturas 216.51 191.58
Interast on subordinated llabifities 11.28 -
Interest on lease liability 17.62 15.08
Other finance cost 2.88 368
Total 1,074.14 850.90
impairment on financial Instruments
Fl‘ll'tl“' ~ . Year ended " Year ended ‘

areewans e March 32, 2022 ‘March 33,2021
On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
{1} Lnans 55,89 27.67
{ii) Investments r "
tiii} Others 0.25 {0.03)
Loan write off 130.15 1.82
Loss on sale of repossessed assets 35.30 17.56
Tatal 22563 47,03
Employee benefits expensaes
Pl;tf LI‘ B ~© “Year ended " . Year anded

arieuiars - " March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Salaries and wapges 662.72 460.06
Contribution to provident and other funds 49,80 30.01
Share based payment to employees (Refer Note 55) 30,91 30.39
staff welfare expanses ‘2321 11.78
Gratuity expenses (fefer Note 38} 5.08 4,72
Leave enctashment 15.58 8.57
Tatal 790,30 546,53
Depreciation, Amortisation and iImpatrments
Particula - Year nmtnd Year ended. .

srcuans March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Depraciation on property, plant and equipments 54.54 44,65
Arnortisatian on intangible assets 16.44 12,89
Total 70.98 57.54




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Al mounts fn Rs, in Millions unless otherwise stated)

35 Other expenses

Particulars . . s ‘Ye?'.' ended .| v Yearended

i o . . .-Mlarch 31,2022 | - March 81,2021
Rent 18.79 18.83
Communicatioh expenses 2176 14,12
Travelling and conveyance 41.32 16.36
Mistellanetus expertses 2.49 1.32
Bank charges 2,32 1.2%
Cash collection expenses 7.65 2.85
Fite storage and processing expenses 14.69 175
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 262 1.31
Membership & subscription 0.64 .11
Security expenses .55 1.54
Branch setup expenses 0.32 0.17
Credit information costs 0.69 3.67
Elactricity charges 7.58 5.64
IT software license costs 50.63 79.23
Insurance wxpenses .09 -
Legal and profassional fees 95.35 79.28
Office expensas 574 2.9
Dffice mizintenance expenses 2.85 9.13
Printing and stationery g.76 151
Payment to auditors (Refer Mate 35.3) 4.7 3,33
Rates and taxes 4.31 201
Recruitment expenses 217 0.65
Repairs and maintenance 1.08 .66
Marketing Expanses 10.63 211
C5R expensas (Refer Note 36} 1.33 -
Recovery of shared cost fram fellow subsidiary (Refer Note 35.2) {56.68) {39.61)
Total 261.34 211.53

35.1 Payment to the auditors:
particulars . - Yearended | . Yearended '
: ‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Az Auditor

Audit fees 3.78 3.00

Cartification and gther matters 081 0.7

Reimibursement of expenses 0.01 0.04

G5T 011 0.12
Total* 4.71 3.33

* Amaount includes Goads and service tax for which input eredit has been disallowed

35.1 Recovery of shared cost from feflow subsidiary:
Adani Capital Private Limited {ACPL} incurs expanditure like rent, electricity charges etc, which is for the common henefit of itself
and its fellow subsidiary Adani Housthg Finance Private Limited (AHFPL), This cost so expended is recoverad by ACPL based on the
actual expenditure Incurred, the number of empleyess and volume of business ate.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All amaounts in Rs. by Millfons unless atherwise stated)

36 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

The pravisions of Section 135 of the Companigs Act, 2013 (‘The Act') with respect to Corporate Soclal Responsibility became applicable to the
Company during the year. The said provsions were not applicable to the Company till end of previous year as the Company did not meet any of the

three criteria mentioned in the Act.

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2022

" Year snded March 21, 2021

1. Amitunt required to be spent by the company during the year

1.33
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset -
i) On purposes gthar than (i) above 133

3. Shartfall at the end of the year*

4, Total of previous years shortfall

%. Reason for shortfall

Mot Applicabls

Not Applicable

6, Nature of CSR activities

1. Provision of infrastructure facilities

at sehools

2. Provisian of food to needy people
during COVID-19 pandemic

Not Applicable

per relevant Accounting Standard

7. Details of related party teansactions in refation to C5R expenditure as

Not Applicable

Not Applicabie

1. In respect of angolng projects, there are na unspent amount, Accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to the speclal account.
2. In respact of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount. Aceordingly, no amount Is required to be trensferred to the fund,

37 Changes in liabifities arising from finanding activities

Partllc;lla'nli R L Asat | Cash Flows © | Changesin Fair 1 Others CooAsat
ST Aprit 1, 2021 {net} .| . Value - {net}] March 31, 2022
Debt securities 251671 {20,00) i4.08 251160
Barrowing other than debt secutities 7.284.05% 8.851.15 - {18.83) 16,116.37
Subordinated labilities - 350.00 - {13.04) 336.96
Total 9, 804.76 9,181.15 - {16.89) 18,965.02
Particulars U Asat ‘CashFlows . ' Changesin Fair § . - Others . { - Asat .
April 1, 2020 Cofnet) 00t Valua “{net)* March 31, 2021
Debt securities 984.52 1,520.00 1210 251671
Borrowing other than debt securities 7.492.35 {141.95) - (66.35) 7,284.05%
Subordinated labilitles - - - - -
Total 847687 1,378.05 - {54.16)} 9,800.76

* Others column includes the effect of weerved hut not poid interest on borrowings, amortisation of processing fees, ete.

P




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes ta the Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
AN amaunts In AS, in Milliens ualess atherwise stated)

38 Employss Benafits

a. Defined contritrution ptan - provident funds

in aeeardance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellanoous Provisions Act, 1952, employens of the Cormpany are enttled to receive benefits under the pravident fund, & defined
cantribution plan, in which, both the employee ard the Company contribute monthly at @ determined rate, These cantributions aro made ta 3 recagnized provident fund administered
by Regional Frovident Fund Commissianer. The amployees contyibute 12% of their basic salary and the Cempany contributes an equal amount,

‘the Company recopnised Rs. 49.80 Million (PY: Rs 30.01 Miliicn) for year ended March 31, 2022, for provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of profit and loss,

b. Defined Benefit Plas - Gratykty

in acetrdance with the Payment of Gratuity Ack, 3972, the Company provides for gratuity, 3 non-¢ontributary defined Bénefit arzangement providing lump-sum pratuity benefits
axpressed In terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering alt employaes. The plan provides a lemp sum payment to vested empigyees Al retirement or términatian of
empfoyment in accordance with the rules lakd dows i the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The thodt cecent dctusiiad valuation partaining to present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carried out 85 8t Maerch 31, 2022 The present value of the
dofined benefit abligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were moasured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuatial vatuation ebtained in this retpest, the fallawing table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the arnounts recognised in the Company's financial statements
as ut balante sheet date:

Ax at T
Particul
artiare \ \ March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present vakue of obfigation (A) 1644 11,84
Fair Value of plan assats (B) - -
Pretent valie of abligatian (A« 8) 16.7% 11.84
Net deficit / {axsets) are analysed as:
Liahilitias - (Refer Note 34/ 16.7% .84
Muavetnent i het defined benefit {axsot) tiability
The follawing table chows a reconcifiation frm ther opening balantes to the cloging balances for nat defined benafit {asset) tiability and its cormponents:
Particuars Dofined Banefit Obligation 1 - FalrValug of plan assets Net defined henefit (asset) Nabilicy
Ji-Mardd 1 i-Mardd 3i-Mar2 Al-Mar-23, A1-Myrn22 31-Mar-21
Dpening balanca 11.84 7.62 - - 11.84 .62
Current serviee cost 746 4.26 - - 7.48 4.6
kterest eost {income) 0.63 .46 - - .63 0.46
Benetits Paict . (0.01) - - - {0.04)
tiakdlity Tranifer in 206 .00 n - 1.06 0.00
Liability Transfer {Quy) - (0-80) - - . {0.80)
2189 11.59 - u 2108 11.53
Othet comprehensive indans
Remuasurernett [oss {gain};
Actuirin! loss {g3in) trising from:
Change in demographic assumptions (597 " . . {5.97) -
Experlonce varlance 055 {53 . - 0.55 {0.53}
Change in Firancial assumptions 22 b.6a - . 0.2 0.84
{5.20) D31 - - {5.20) 31
closing halance 16,73 1184 n - 16.79 11.84
Represented by
Net defined Nabifity 1679 11.54
26,74 1184
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tompenents of defined benefit plan cost:

For the year Far the year -
Particulars ended ended
Mareh 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Recognited in statement of profit or Inss
Current service cRst 7.46 4.26
Interest cost/ (incoma) (net) 0.63 0.46
Total a.04% 472
Recagnised In ather comprehenclve Incoma
Actuarial loss {gain) arising from:
Change in demographtc assutmptions {5.97) .
Experience variance 0.53% {0.53}
Change in Financisl 384amptions 2 0.B4
Total {5.20 0.31
Actuarial assurnptions:
The following were the pringipal actuarial assumptions at the reperting date:
CArat AS 8t
Partleu
ardestars March 81, 2022 | March 31, 2023
Discdutt rage 5 10% 5.30%
Balary growth raee B.od% B.00%
Withdrawal/attrition rate {based on categorigs) 46.20% 25.10%
100% of IALM 100% &f IALM
Martality rate 2013-14 2012-14
Expected welghted average remaining working lives of employees 25.5% years 25,83 yoars

Notes:

a} the discount rate indicated obove reflacts the estimated timing ond curreney of benefit payments. it is bosed on the yields / rates puniloble 6n upplicable bonds as on the current

voluation dote,

b} The salary growth rote indicoted obove it the Company’s bast estimote of an increase in selery of the employees In future years, determined considering the general trend in
infTation, seniprity, promotitns, past cxperence gnd other relevant fuctars such as demand ond supply in emplayment market, te.

&) Attrition rate indicated above represents the Campany's best estimate of employed turnsver in future {other then on ccount of retirament, death e disablement) datermingd

eonsidering vorious fackors such as nature of busingss, ratention palicy, industry factors, post experidnce, ete.

Sansitivity analysis;:

Reasonably possible changas at the reparting date to ane of the refevant Actuarial psturnptions, holding athar assumptions constant, would have affected the defined henefit abfigation

by the amounts shown below.

O Asat As At
Pactleubars March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021
. increasa Hecreage inerense Docrease
satary Growth Rate [+/- 1%) 1134 16.35 12.48 11.24
[% change campared to base due to sensitivity) 2 70% -2.60% 540 -5.10%
[Hscount Rate (+/- 1%) 16.35 17.25 1123 12.51
(% change compared to base dua 1o sensitivity) -2-60% 2.80% -5.20% 5.50%
Attritlon fiate {+/- 50% af attrition rates) 1264 23.55 8.7 16.46
{% change compared tc hase dus to sensitivity) 24, 0% 40, 30% -25.80% 38.00%
Mortality Rate {-/+ 10% of mortality rates) 16.79 16.7¢ 1184 11.84
{% change comparad to base due to $ensitivity) 0.00% D.OG% iRl Q.00%

Tha Sansitivity is parformed on the DBO at the respactive valuation dats by modifying one parameter whilst rataining other parameters canstant. There ks no ehange in the method of

valuation far the prior prriad.
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Maturity profile of Defined Benafit Obligation

: ; RV 7" S As at
Expacted cash fi th t (valued di tad basis): . :
pacted cash flows over the nex (valued an un seourted bias 5) March 31, 2022 | waaret 21, 2001
1 years 4.30 D.46
2 1en B yoRrs 1303 785
B t6 10 years 1.98 5,18
Mare than 10 Years 0.13 248
Experience adjustments
Asat A5 BY
Farticula

artiwars March 31, 2022 | March 21, 2021
Dafined Benefit Obligations 16.79 11.84
Fair value of plan assets - -
Asset/(liability) recognizad ire the bulance shest 16.79 184
Experience adjustsment on plan fiabllities D55 {053}
¢. Lompensated absences:

The Compiny pravides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projectad unit credit method based on actuarial valuation,
1Y 14 As at
Farticulars .

Artie March 31,2022 | March 32, 2023
fresent value of urfunded obiigation a8 20.96
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Proft and Lass .52 6.41
Azsumption
Ditéorunt Rate 5.10% 5.30%
Satary growth rate £.00% &0
Withdrawal/attrition rate {(based on categories) A6, 2% 25 10%
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398 Tax expense

{a) Amounts recognised in profit and foss

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Currant tax expense

‘Year ended
March 31, 2021

Current year 1233 11.30

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3%.30 27.16

Tax expense for the year 47.63 38.46

{b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

March 31, 2022

Particulars Before tax Tax {expense} | Netoftax -

lteins that will not bre reclassifled to profit or loss

{3) Remeasuremants of defined benefit lizbiltty (asset) 519 {1.31) 3.88

Total 5.19 {1.31} 3,88

March 31, 2021

Particulars o ‘Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax

Items that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a} Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability (asset) (0.31) Q.08 (023}

Total {0.31) 4.08 [0.23}

{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

p rtl . I B | ¥earended {  Yearended .
arioular? SRR March 31, 2022 | ‘March 31, 2021

Profit hefore tax as per Statement of profit and loss 119.56 201.23

Applicable Incoma tax rate (%) 35.17% 25.17%

Tax expense ¢calculated at applicable income tax rate 30.09 50.64

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected Income tax expense to reported income tax

ttllisation of braught farward losses - (9.30)

Unused tax credits (MAT Cradit) - {5.40}

beduction under saction 35 D - {0.03}

Deduction under section 36 (1) {viii} - (0.59)

Changes in Fair Value . 0.12

Cther adjustrments 17.54 3.02

Income tax expense recggnised in profit and luss 47.63 38,46

Effective Tax Rate 39.84% 18.11%

Note: The Corpany has elected to exercise the aption parmitted under section 1158AA of the income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
{Amendment} Ordinance, 2019, Aceardingly, the Company has recognised provision for incorme Tax for the year ended March 31, 2022 and re-measyred
its Deferred tax assets/liability basis the rate prescribed in the aforesaid section and recognised the effect of change by revising the annual effective

irCome tax rate.
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A0 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

" IYear ended March

Year ended March

Particulars 31, 2022 31,2021
Net profit atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company - A 71.93 162.77
Waighted average number of shares (Basic) - B 1,73,14,940 1,72,89,996
Dilutive impact of potential equity shares for employee stock options outstanding 52,207 17,784
Weighted average nurnber of shares (Diuted) - C 1,73,67,147 1,73,17,720
Basic earnings per share (in Rupeas) (A/B) 4.15 944
Diluted earnings por share (in Rupees) (A/C) 4.14 9.40

P
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Contingent fiabilites and commitments

ity the ordinary course of business, the Company faces ¢laims and assertions by various parties. The Company assasses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legel environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necassary, The
Camparny records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discluses such matters in
its financial statemeants, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in
the financial staternents but does not recard a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable,

The Campany believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have & materially adverse effect on the Company's finaneial position
and results of operations,

a. Contingent Liabitity
There are no contingent Habilities as at 31 March 2022 as well as at 31 March 2021,

b. Commitments

Asat March 31, | Asat March3l,

Particular 2022 1 201
Commitment in respact of:
Capital expenditura 4,16 118.28
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed 1,345.03 776.83

For the loans pertaining to Farm Equipment and Commerclal Vehicle business amounting to Rs. 1 60184 Million (PY - Rs. 1,088.84 Miliian)
as at March 31, 2022, the Management i§ In the process of collection of Registration Certificate Book (RC Book) from the customers.

I case of Vehicle Loans for Farm Equipment busingss amounting to Rs. 51,45 Milllos (PY - Rs. 13,72 Million) as at March 31, 2022, first
defaulit loss guarantee is provided by equipment manufacturer to the extent of S0%.

In respect of secured loans for MSME business amounting to Rs, 62.92 Million (FY - Rs. 32.29 Million) disbursed, the Company is in the
process of perfecting the security,

Receivable / Payable Balance in foreign currency — Rs. Nl (PY — Rs. NH). The Company does not have any unhedged foreigh currency
exposure as on March 31, 2022 (PY - Nil).

Segment information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment |.e, lending, since the pnature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and return
profiles hence they are collactively epersting under # single segment, The Company operates in a single geographical segment e,
dormestic. Hence, there are no separate reportable segroents, as reguired by the Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting’.

Events after reporting date

There have bean no events after the reporting date that reguire disclosure In thase financlal statements.
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48 Maturity Analysls of assets and flabilities

The table below shows an analysls of assets and fiabllities analysed according to when they are expected to be recoverad or suttled. With regard to foans and
advances 1o customers, the cormpany uses the same hasis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR.

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,136,80 . 4,136.80 1,431.53 - 1,431.53
Bank Balantes other than cash and cash equivalents 1,230.74 50,87 1,281,632 - - -
Receivatiles
{I} Trade receivables 7.29 - 7.1% 1.95 - 1.95

Loans 6,847.18 11,935.60 18,782.78 L,066,81 6,585,385 11,6582.66
Qther Financial a3ssets 188.62 149.15 332.77 119,41 65,20 184.61
Sub total 12,410.63 12,135.62 24,546.25 6,619.70 b,651.05 13,270.1“'5”“
Non-financial assets
Current Tax assets (net) 38.66 18.66 - 37.59 37.59
Defarved Tax assets (Net) - - - - 1648 19.48
Property, plant and equipment 104,78 104.78 - 192.60 192,90
Capital work-in-progress 0.18 0.18 - - -
Intangible assets under development 23.38 23.38 - 0.09 0.09
Other intangible assets - 122,77 122,77 - 133,76 133.76
Other pon-financidl assets 57,65 - &7.66 30.08 - 30.08
Sub total b67.66 A85.77 557.43 30.08 383.82 413.90
Total assets 12.A78.2% 12,625.3% 25,103.68 6,649.78 7,034.87 13,684.65
LIABILITIES ANL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial lizbilities
Payablas
(I} Trade payables

{i) torat outstanding dues of creditars of micro “ -

entarprises and smatl enterprises

(K} tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than £0.19 60.19 65.8% £5.89

micro enterprises and small enterprises
{1} Other payables

(W tota! outstanding dues of creditors of micro - - -

enterptises and smatkl saterprisas

{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 3.85 ags 5,93 593

micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 2,012.35 499,34 2,511.659 1,021.34 1,495,317 2,516.71
Borrowings (Other than Debt Sacurities) £,183.45 9,932.92 16,116.37 2,B87.35 4,396,70 7,284.05
Subordinated Liahiities 004 336.87 336.96 - " .
Qther Financial liabilities 628.81 133.84 B12.65 549,50 132.29 201.79
Sub totaf 8,888.74 10,952.97 18,841.71 4,050.01 6,024.26 10,074.37
Non-Financial Hahiilties
Provisions 21.47 25.80 41.27 2152 24.54 46.06
Deferred tax Habiites {net} - 17,13 1713 - - -
Qther non-financial Habilities 7723 - 1723 51.80 - 61.89
Sub total - 98.70 42.93 141,63 A3.41 24.54 107.95
Total liabilities 8,987.44 10,995.90 19,983.34 4,133.42 6,048.90 10,182.32
Met Assets / {Liabilitles) {A - B} 3,490.85 1,629.43 5,120.34 2,516,326 985,97 3,202,141
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4% Related Party Disclosure

a. Name af related party and nature of relatianship:

Name of Related Parttes by whom eatitval IS exercised

Ultimate haiding company

Holding tompany

Fellow subsidiury cotngaty

Enterprise snder common control

Key management persacingl

Ralative of key management parsonnet

Adani Properties Private Limited
Adani Finserva Private Limited

Adwvsi Housing Finbrice Priviate Lirmited
Adani 5paciai Situations Private Limited
Adani Bigital Sevvices Private Limited

Adant Hospitals Mundra Pivate Limited
Adani Foundation

Mr. Sagar R, Adani {Direcior)

My. Gaurav Gupta (Managing Director & CEG - w.ef 31 March 2021 and
Director bpte 30 March 2021)

Mr. Viral Shah (CFO - w.e.f 5 March 2021}

M. Bhavik Shah (Company Seeretary) (TIll 11 Novenrber 2821)

Mr, Jitenstea Chuturvedi {Company Sectetary) (w.e.f 11 Novernber 2021)

Mrs. Anjal Gupta

b. Tranzacthon with related parties;

Partlculars ¥or the Year ended March 31, 2027 | For the Year ended March 31, 2021
Current Becowmt b niaetiong

Inkerrarparate deposits received:

Adanl Finsarve Private Bimited - 119.00
Inter-tarporate depasis repaid;

Adanl Finserve Private timlted - 26900
Interest on Inter-camporate deposits paid:

Adani Finsarve Private timited - 318
Issue of Equity Sharet including premiums:

Adani Fintqrva Private Limited 1,500.00 -
Relmbursement of expenges:

Adani Housing Finance Private himited - Receivable 56,68 46,35
Adani Finserve Pivate Limited - Reimbursement of share based payment 11.28 6.75
1o employeas - Recelvables

Adini Finserve Pivate Limited - Transfer of Employess Gratuity fiabllity - G50
of erstwhile empioyee of company - Payable

Adpai Finserve Pivate Lirmited - Transfor of Employees Gratuity Hability 2.06 -
of arstwhile omployee of AFPL - Receivatble

Adani Finserve Plvate Lirited - Payable - 0.74
Adent Housing Fingnce Pivate Limited - Qther Reimbursemant 0.06

Recaivabile

Others:

Adsni Hospitals Mundra Pivate Limited 2z -
Adani Foundatian 1.33 -
Rent paid:

Mr, Gavrav Gupta 388 3.88
Mirs. Anjall Gupta 3.B8 3.8
Adant Properties Private Limited 1.24 1.4
Remuneration:

Mit. Gauray Gupta (w.e.f 315t March 2021) 999 .
Mr, Viral Shah {w.e.f 9th March 2021) B.5% 0.38
Mir. Bhavik Shah (1l 11th Novenber 2021} 0.5 1.05
Mr. Heendra Chaturvedi (w.ef 11th November 2021} 0.62 -
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¢ Transactions gutstanding at year end

Fartlculars - S " 'As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Athount Recalvable:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 65.81 46.15
Adani Finserve Privite Limited

share Based Fayment to Employees 18,03 B.YS

Amount Payahls;

Adanj Finsarve Private Limited
Retmbursement of Expenses - D.74
Transfer of Employees Gratuity lability - {.80

Adanl Hospitals Musdrs Pivate Limited
Others 0.22 B
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30 Leases

Comparny as 2 Lessee

The Company has entered inta lease contracts for premises at various locations, Leases of premises generally have lease terms hetween 5
te @ years, The Cornpany’s ebligatians under its leases are secured by the lassor’s title to the feased assets.

The Company alsa has certain feases of premises which are cancellable in nature and leases for printers with lease term of 12 months ar
less for which the Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and 'lease of low.value assets’ recognition exemptions.

a. For carrying armounts of right of use assets {included undar 'Property, Plant & Equipment’) and the rmovements during the period refer

Note 14

b. Larrying amounts of lease fiabitittes (included under 'Other Financdal Liabilities") and the movements during the period:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 { As at March 31, 2021
As at 1st April 147.64 154 84
Additiong 101.04 24.78
Digpogals - {1277}
Aceretion of interest 17.63 15,08
Payments {41.21} {33.29)
As at 315t March 225.10 127.64
€. Maturity analysis of lease Hiabilities is as under:

Particulars | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2621
Within 12 months 43.24 20.28
After 12 manths 182,86 127.38
Total 2725.10 147.64
d. Ameunts recoghised in statement, of profit or loss:

Particulars ‘ o As &t March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 35.10 37.39
Interest axpense on lease liabilities 17.63 15.08
Expense relating to short-term |eases and low value items (included in other expenses) 18.79 18,03
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 71,52 60,50

e. Cash flows and additlons to assets / liabilitias:

The Company had total cash outflows for leages of Rs. 60.00 Million for the year ended March 31, 2022 (PY - Rs. 51.32 Millian). The
Company also had nor-cash additions to right-of-use assets of Rs. 104,75 Mitlion for the year ended March 31, 2022 (PY - Rs. 25.17 Million)
and lease habilities of Rs. 101.04 Million for the year ended March 31, 2022 (PY - Rs. 24.78 Million).

f. Future Camiritrments:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Future undiscounted lease payrments for which the leases have not yer enmmenced

Nil

Nii

& Extension / Termination Options:

some of the leases contain extenslon and termination optians, Such options are taken into account in the determination of the lzase term
only if extension or non-termination can be assumed with reasonabie certainty. On this basis, there were no such amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities as at Mareh 31, 2022

h. The company had applied the practical expedient to all rent concessions as it met the conditions mentioned in paragraph 46A & 468 of
Ind AS 116 - 'Leases' and the amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or loss for the previous yoar ended Maceh 31, 2021 to reflect
chonges in lease paymants that arise from rent concessions was Rs, 1.26 milllans {(Mareh 31, 2022 - NIL).
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51 Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with
externally imiposed capital requirements from its regulators te. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and maintains strong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in arder to support its business and 1o maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changsas in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of its activitles. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. The capital
managemeant palicy is under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory Capital

The below regutatory caphal Is computed in sccordance with Master Direction DNBR. PB, 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September 1, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Particulars L As at Asat .
T L | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Capital Funds

Net owned funds {Tier | capital) 4,631.668 3,211.92
Tier H capltal 457.58 17,58
Total capital funds 5,089.25 3,289.50
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 20,5597.08 12,779.62

% of capital funds to risk weighted assets exposures:

Tier | capital 24.48% 25.13%
Tier It capitat 2.22% 0.61%
Total capital Funds 24.71% 25.74%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, whith camprises share capital, shara premtum, retained earnings including
current year's profit kess accrued dividends, Certain adjustments are made to ind AS — based results and reserves, as

prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatory capital is Tler || Capital, which includes
subordinated debt.

The Company s meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of India (RBH.
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52 Fair Value Measurement
A. Valuation Principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly trapsattion in the principal (or mest
avantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e,, an exit price), repardless of whether that price is diractly
chservable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financlal Instruments are classified based on
a higrarchy of valuation technigues. Refer Note 5.10 - Determination of Fair Value {Accounting policy Nate) for more detalls on fair value hisrarchy.
B. Valuation governance framewark
Tha Company’s fair value methodology and the governance over its models Ineludes a nurmber of tontrols and other procedures 1o ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adeguacy. All new product inltiatives (including their valuation methadologies) are subject to
approvals by various functions of the Company Including the risk and finance functions.
Where fair values are determined by reference te externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or

validation is used. For Inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that Is consldered
to be more refevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing maeasurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However fingree department is also responsibie for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards,

C. Falr value hlerarchy of financial assets and financial Habilities

The carrylng amounts of the following financial assets and financial fiabilittes are a ressonable approximation of their fair values.

Flnanclal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,135.80 . B - 4,136.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash 1,281.61 - n . 3,281,651
eqtivalents

Trade Recelvables 7.29 - - - 7,29
Loans 18,782.78 " B - 18,782,782
Other financial assets 33777 - - 3377
Total Financial Assets 24,546.25 - - - 24,546.25

Financlal Liabilities

Trade Payables 54.04 - - . 64.04
Debt Securities 2,511,659 - - - 2,511.69
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 16,116.57 - - - 16,116.37
Subardinaled Liabilities 336.96 B - - 236.96
Other Einancial Liabilities 812.65 - . - B12.65

Total Financial liabilities 19,841.71 - - - 19,841.71
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As at March 31, 2021

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,431.53 " - - 1,431,53
Trade Receivables 1,95 - . - 1.85
Loans 11,652.66 " . - 11,652.66
Qiher financial assets 184.61 - " - 184,63
Total Financiat Assets 13,270.75 - - M 13,270.75

Financial Liabilitles

Trade Payables 71.82 . - - 71.82
Bebt Securities 2,516.71 - - - 251671
Borrowings 7,284.0% - " v 7,2B84.05
Other Financial Liabilities 201.79 - - - 201,749

Total Financial abilities 10,074,347 u - - 10,674.37
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Risk Management
Introduction and risk profile

Risk iz an inherent pant of Campany's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sells
securities in market, or offers other products ar services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall
objective is to manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and
investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Campany believes that effective risk management reguires:

1) Acceptance of responsibility, Including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company ;

2) Ownarship of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Carporate ; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

4} Robust underwriting policy

5} Portfolio Monitoring process

&) Fraud detection and prevention process

The Company strives for continual improvement threugh efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and developrment
and other measurag,

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk managemeant policy framewoark for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks
associatad with the various business activities. The risk function is monltared primarily by independent risk management team,

Our risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be abla to withstand market volatility and
scenarias of sharply declining prices. As a result, we follow conservative lending norms.

The Campany's board of directars has aversll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The Board, has empowered the Risk Management team, which has an independent Head who Is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. On a periodic basis the Head of Risk appraises the Board on the
overall risks, recommends change in the processes and policies and takes stock of the overall portfolio quality and key risk indicators,

The audit committee oversees how management monitors complisnce with the Company's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit
comemittee is assisted in its aversight rofe by Internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management contrals and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processas ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal
& credit control processes, centralisad operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies
and approving loans at transaction level as well as our risk managemant processes and polictes allow layers of multiple checks and
verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by the head of our business or operations. Our loan approval and
administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and rmaximise
recovernes, .
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At ait levels of the Company's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distrlbuted in order to ensure that ail
business divisions have access ta extensive, necessary and yp-ta-date information.

ftis the Company's policy that 3 monthly briefing Is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant members of the Compaay
in the utilisation of rarket limits, proprietary investrments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments,

it is the Company's policy 10 ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in Its organisational risk culture. Employees are
expected 10 take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitar and keep thelr exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits, Compliance breaches and
internal audit findings are important elemeants of employees' annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities, or activities in the same
geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause thek ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on
maintalning 3 diversified portfollo. identifled cancentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 222
Al amounts in fx. in Milllons yolass athuewie $ared)

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financiai lozs to the Company If 3 customars or counterpartles to financal Instrument faids to discharge their cantractual abligations and arisas principally
from Company '3 Leans and advances to customer, Frade Receivables and Investment, The Company msanages and controls eredit risk by setting Hmits on the amount of Fisk It is
willing to accept for Individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures In relation to tuch limits, The company has adoptad a
policy of dealing with credit warthy cauntar parties and obtaln sutficient collateral , where gppropiriate as a medns af mitigating the risk of financial |oss fram defautt,

Credit risk iy monitored by the credit risk departmens of the Company's indapandant Risk Controlling UnIE. 1€ is ther responstbility La review sad manage credit risk, Including
envirormental and sociat risk for sll types of countarpartias. Gredit rick consists of Hina credit risk managers who ars responisible for thelt business lines and manage specific portfolios
and axparts who support oth the line credit risk managear, a5 wall as the businoss with tooks like credit risk systams, pofieles, models and Feporting.

The Campany has gstablished # eradit quality review pracess to provide early identification of possible changes i the craditworthiness of counterparties.

The Credit quality review process airms to allow the Company ta assess the potential kass as resuft of the risk to which it is exposed and take coreective action.

The Company's Internal rating graded on days past dys (P basis.

{ternal Rating Beseription Stagiig
o PPE e 30 DRD Stage 3
23 ta 90 (1D Stage 2
90+ BP0 Stage 3

52.1.1: Impalrment assessmett

The refarences below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach |s sat out I this repott. it shoukd be read in conjunction with tha summary of
significant accaunting policies.

[a} The Campany’s definition ahd atsesiment of defaust and cure (Note 53.1.1,1).

[b) How tha Company defings, caloulates and monitors the probability of detault, exposure at default and toss given default (Notes 53.1,1.2 ta 54,1,1.4 )

[} When the Company considers there hat been a significant ingresse in cradit risk of an exposure (Note 53.1,.1.5}

[d) The Company’s policy of sagmenting financial assets where ECL 18 assessed oh & foliective basis (Note 53.1.1.6)

{e) Tha detatls of the ECL calcuitions for Stage A, Stage } and Gtage 3 assats (Nota 10.3)

53.1.1.1: Defnition of defavkt and cara

The cormpany conskders o financial instrument defaulted and therefore 5tage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECE ealculations in all cases when the borrowar becomes 90 days past dus on its
conttactual payments. As a part of a qualitative assessmant of whether a customer 15 in defauwil, the torapany alta considert a variety of instances that may indicate unlikelibess ta
pay. When such events occur, the company carefully considers whether the event shouRd result in treating the custormer as defsulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL
calcutations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate Such avents include exposura to sector which is facing tome challenging time In terms of demand and supply mismatch, fundiag lssue
that may Indicate unlikefingss to pay ate.

53.1.1.2 PD estimation process
Prabability of default (PD) Js an astimate of tha likellhood of default aver a given time horizan. Ih the absence of sufficient history of default the company has primarlly ssureed the
POg from exterial defauit repartz published by various rating sgancies,

§3.1.2.3 Bxposure at dafault
The exposure at defauit (EAD) represents the gross cacrying amaunt of the financial instrumants subjact to the impalrment calculation.

52,3.3.4 kot given default

The 1GD reprosents expacted loszed on the EAD given the event of default, taking inta account amang other attributes the mitigating etiect of eollateral value at the tima it is
expacted to be realized and the tine value of money. The LGD is computad in the following manner:

a) In case of Commercial vehicle and Fatm Eqlipments portfolio the LGD percentage is determined basad on the recovery exparience trom closed eases.

b} In case of loans to MSME Sectot and tetr luans to Corporate customess the LED percentage is determined barad on the astimated value of recovery fism the sale of collateral
after cansidering reasonable haireuts s deter mined appropriate by the management whera latest fair valuas of collateral is ot avallable with the marnagement and

c) In case of other portfolios proxy LGD percentage as preseribed by the regutatory authority {FIRB Appraach] is considered.

53.1.1.5 Significant Increstg fn credit sk

When determining whether the credit risk has increased significantly sinca Initial recognition, the Campany eontiders both guantitative and qualitative information ano analysls
based on the Company's histarical experience, incleding forward-lacking Information. The Comnpany considers teasonable snd supportable informatian that is relevant and avsilable
without undie cost and effort. The company considers an arpRsure b have significantly increased I credit eisk whien the borrower crasses 30 DD But iz within S0 DE),
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53.1.1.6 Grouplng financial assets meazured on a collective basls

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on an expasure has increased significantly on an individual or collective hasis. For the purposes of & eollective svaluation of
Impairment, |oans are grouped on the basis of shazed credit risk characteristics, taking inte seeaunt instrument type, cradit risk ratings, date of inltial tecoghition, remaining term to
maturity, indistry, gengraphical location of the borrower amd other relevant factors,

The Company sembines theie exposure intn smalter homogensous portfallos, based on a combination of internal and external characteristics of the Ioans, the campany has
determined the following poolz for the purpose of computing ECL:

u} Com mercial Vehicie

b) Fartn Equiptnents

€] MSME

d) Corporate loans

e} Supply Chain Finance

f} Other Retail Loans

53.1.1.7 Forward Inghing Adjustiment

A rieasire of EC| is an unbiased probsbility welghied amount that is dotermined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and ysng a reaconable and supportable infarmation
that it svmilable withawt undue cost of effort ot the reporting date about past avents, current eonditiont and forocasts of Fyture econamic conditions. Iy the current year the
management haz incarporated the Tmpact of ferward losking estimate through management overlay. The impact of COVIE 19 on the global aconanyy and how governmant,
butiness and consumer respond is utcertain, the methadelogy and assumption applied to tompute the ECL +emains unchangad however the management has separataly
inearporated cectain judgentents atd dssumptions spocificatly 1o incorporata the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

83.3.2 Analysis of risk con¢antration

Concentration arise when a number of countorparties are angaged in similar business activities | or activitizs in the same geographicsl reglon , ar have similar aronomic features that
wauld cause thelr abllity to meet contractural obligation te be slmtarly affected by chance In econamic, palitical or other condition . Cohcentration indicate the refative sensitivity of
the Company 's perforinance to development affecting a particular Industry or geagraphical location,

The falkowing rable shows the risk cancentration by industry for the coniponents af the balance sheet. Additiona? disclosuras for credit guality and the maximum rxpesure for credit
risk per catagories hased en the Company's internal rating grade and vear-end stape classification are further disclosed in Nobe 10,1,

Incjustry Analysls

31k
Fnanelal psgity

Cash and cpsh eguivalents 4,136.80 - - 4,136 80
Bank balances other than cash ahd cath equivalents 1,281.61 - - 1,281.61
Trade and other receivables 7.29 - - .29
Lanng - 1061 inraa? 18,782.718
Other Finantial Assets 33747 - - 311.717
Total 5&753.«? 10.61 187720 24,5425
B1-Mar-21

Elnariclsl agioels

Cash and cazh egquivalants 1,431.53 - - 1,431.53
Bank balances athar than cash atid eath eguivalents - - - .
Trade and other recaivahies L85 . - . o
Lodng - 312 .80 11,333.76 11,652.66
Other Fihaneial Asspts 184.61 - - 184.61
Tevtal 161809 312.90 1*5335.')'& 13,270.75

£3.1.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of tallateral raquirad depends on an assessment of Whe eredit rigk of the caunterparty, Guidalines are in place coveribg the acceptability and valuation of each
type of colataral,

The malt types of collateral obtalned are, a3 follows:
a} For corporate lenditg land, bulldings, residential properties and develapment rights of an undar construction property
b] For ¢etail lending, mortgage proparty maihly residential property, vehicle, farm equipmont

In sts hortmal course of businass, the Company does rot physleally tepossess properties or other assets In its ratall pertfolio, but engages externat agants ta racaver funds, generally at
auction, to settte outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/abligars, As a result of this practice, the residential properties under Jegai repassassion
processes are hot recotded an the balance sheet and riot trested ss non—turrent assets held for sale,
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The tables on the tollowing pages show the maxtmum exposure to credit risk by class of financial astet alomyg with details oa coliateral haid against expasurg,

rincipai type of collateral

Financial assets

Lash and cash egulvaleries 4,136.80 1,431.53

Bank batances ather than cash and cash oquivalants 1,281.61 -

Receivalres

{1} Trade receivables 7.29 1.95 -
{1i) Other receivalibes - .

Lerans Secured 16,188.32 9,325.85 {land, hullaings, residantial properties and developrent
rights of an under constraction property, morgage
property mainly residenuat preperty, vehitle, farm
lequinmant,

Laant Unsecurad 2,B30.98 2,503.44

Other financisl assets 331.77 184.51

The Company bag an Undrawn loans & advances commitiment arnounting to Rs. 1,345.03 min {PY: Rs. 776.83 mn)

Cahtateryl and vther eradit enhancemants

The biekow tables provide gn analysis of the cusrent fair values of eollateral held and credit enhancemants for stage 3 assets,

it wxgbsyre o crorit vk

Loang
Retall Lantg
31-Mar-22 25382 959.48 144,34 5259.35
31-Mar-21 163.20 8246 A, 291.32

Narrative description of Collaterat

Callateral primarily include vehlches purchased by retail loan customers and machinery & propaerty in case of MSME custemers,

Quantitative information of Collateral

The Company manttors its exposure to loan partfolio using the Loan Ta Value {LTV) ratio, which is calculated as the ratio of the grass ameunt of tha koan Ya the vatue of the collateral.
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Liquidity Kisk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company witl encounter difficueity in meeting obligations associated with financial Habilittes that are settied by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity rizk arises because of the passiility that the Campany might be unable to mest its payment obligations when they FaB due 85 3 result of mismatches in the
timing af the cash flows under both ngrmal and stress circemstancas.

Yo Kimit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources and has adepted a policy of managing assets with Bgoidity i mind and monitoring fetuee cash flows and
liquidity on reguiar basis. The Company has developad interndl cantrol procetses snd contingency pians for managing bquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected
cash fiows and the availability of ¢ash, cash equivaients and high grade cailatersl which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Company maintains a partfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easiy hguldated in the event of an unforeseen intetruption in cash How, The
Company also has committed lines af credit that it can access to rmeet liguidity needs. In aceordance with the Company's padicy, the Biuidity positian 3 assessed under a variety of
seenarios, giving due consideration for stress factars rolating W bath the market in general and specificaily ta the Company,

Advatites to Borrowings ratio

Particula | Ae et Msrel 91,3022 1A ot Mareh 31,2021
Year-and 0a.04% 11B.90%

Boriawings fram bisnks and financiat institutions and issue of debantures are considered a5 important sources of funds to finance fending to customers, They are monltored using
the advincos 1o barrowings raltio, which compares loans and advances to customers as a percentage of secured and unsecured barrowings.

Anzlysis of inancial assets and liablitles by remaining eonteactual maturities
‘the table below summarises the muturity profile af the undistounted cash Rows of the Company's financial assens and lxbidiliss ps at:

A pt Mareh 31, 2022

Carticulary &5 than'# month 10’5 years otal
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,136.80 B.16 - - - 4,343.96
Bank balances other than cask snd eath equivalents - 20.62 1,232.25 RimM . 1,305,868
Trade Racaivables B 718 0.30 12 . 7461
Laans u 479203 4,195,418 13,590.18 4,871,485 i8,049.70
Other Finantisl sssets - 123.40 6%.35 144.32 12.52 345.59
Tatal undiscounted fnanclal assets 4,136.80 4,948%.39 6,093.31 13,788.24 #,884.00 83,851 74
Financial liablitles

Trade Payables .82 41.19 19.03 - " 54,04
Debt securities - 1,039.83 L123.8¢ 531.32 . 2,675,10
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securitias) . 1,432.06 £,487.21 13,328.03 B 18,652.30
Subatdinated Liabilities g ELRE:) 3413 102.47 393.81 564.54
Other Finaneial llabiliies - 596,56 3225 127.31 56,53 B11.65
Tatal undiscounted Anancial Nabilitles 1,82 3,144.B6 7,095.48 12,06%.13 450.34 22,768.6%
Yotal nat financial assets [ {liabliities) 4,132.98 1,800.53 {1.003.17) 1,719.11 4,433.66 11,083.11

Az ot March 31, 2023

Particiars 15 than. 3 month

Fingncia! assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,431.53 1.30 . " . 1,432,683
Trade Receivables v 242 B v - .02
Laans - 3,691.13 3,012.85 7,808.30 2,347.76 16,852.04
Qther Firaneial agsets - 15.26 48,493 67.99 7.82 20D.00
Total yndiscountrd financial asgets 1,A31.53 3,768.71 3,061.78 7,868.29 2.355.58 18,486,809

Finandial llabliitlas

Trade Payables - 74,42 16,50 - w a31.01
Debt securlites " B1.25 1,155.02 1,565.83 . 1,786,120
Borrawingi {Other than Dobt Securities) . 167,68 7,643.55 5,003,54 - 841477
Other Finaneiyl labilities - 86.60 26.03 13304 31,34 277.01
Total undizcounted financlal labilities - 985,95 3,841,19 6,706.51 31.34 11,568.99

‘tatal net financial assets [ (llekilities) 1,431.53 2,779.76 {779.41) 1,161.78 82424 6,917.50
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Contractual explry of commitments

The table helow shows the contractual expiry by matwity of the Company's commitments.

Azt Mareh 31, 2022

Particilsrs st5 than 3 nanths |

Estimated amount of contracts capital account - 4.18 4.16
Totat - 4.16 4.16
Az atMarch 31,307

Particulars On 0 1012 monthy -

Estitrated armount of eantracts capital account

11g.28

Tartal

11828
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Disclosure as per RBI circular DORNBEC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019
RE has issued guidelines on Liguidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core
tnvestment Companles an Movember 4, 2019, As per the guldelines, the disciosure on liquidity risk as at March 31,

2022 is ag under:

A. Funding Cancentration based on significant counterparty

Millions) .
2021-22 14 18,365.47 | NA 91.90%
2020-21 16 9,696,37 | NA 95, 23%
Note:

“significart Counterparty” is defined #s a3 single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterpartias
accounting in aggregate for mare than 1% of the NBFC-ND5I's, NBFC-Ds total liabllities and 10% for other non-deposit
taking NBF(s,

Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserves and Surplus.

B, Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. Millions and % of total deposits)

Nil. The Company is registered with RB{ as Non Deposit accepting NBEC,

C. Top 10 borrowings (amount In Ks Milflons & % of total borrowings*)

12,943.44
B,776.42

0. Funding Concentration based an significant lnstrument / praduct:
As at 315t March, 2022

1 Long Term Bank Loans 1% lmﬁ

2 Short Tarm Loans 2 1,530.59 10.01%

3 Long Term NCD 2 1,507.73 7.54%

4 Short Term NCD 1,003.96 5.02%

5 Subordinated Debt 146 3318.96 1.69%

& Commercial Paper - Nil -
Total 1684 18,962.24 S4.B9%

* Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets lass Equity share capital Iess Reserve & Surplus

* # Two bank has sanctioned bath long term laans & long term NCED

As at 315t March, 2021

oliiterparties Millinig .
1 Long Term Bank Loans 16 7,265.10 71.35%
2 Short Term Loans 2 66.00 0.65%
3 Long Term NCD 3 2,500.00 24.55%
4 Short Term NCD - “
5 Subordinated Debt - - -
& Commercial Paper - - .
Total 184 9,831.10 86,55%

» Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assots less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surpius

« # Two hank has sanctioned both long term loans & long term NCD

% O
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E. Stock ratios:
As at 31st March, 2022

Cornmercial papers as a % of total liabilities N.A,
Commercial papers a3 a % of total assets N.A
Commercial papers as a % of total public fund N.A.
Nan-convertible debentures {original maturity of lass than one year) ay a % of total liabilities 5.02%
Non-convertible debenturas {ariginal maturity of lass than one year) as a % of total Assets 4,00%
Non-canvertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund N.A,
Other short-terrn labillties as a % of total Habilities 44.97%
Qther shart-term liabilities as a % of total assets 35,80%
Other short-term liabilities a5 a % of public fund MLA.
« As on March 31, 2022, Qutstanding Commercial Paper is Nil,

As at 315t March, 2021

Commarcial papers as a % of total liabilities N.A
Lommercial papers as a % of total assets N.A,
Commercial papers a3 a % of total public fund N.A.
Non-convertible debentures {orightal maturity of fess than one year) as a % of total iabifities N.A,
Non-convertitle debantures (origina! maturity of less than one year) as a % of total Assets N.A.
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund NL.A,
Other shart-term liabilities as a % af total liwbilities 40.59%
Other short-term fiabilities as a % of total assets 30.20%
Other short-term liabilities as a % of public fund h.A,

* As on March 31, 2021, Outstanding Commercial Poperis Nil.
F. Institutional set up for liquldity risk management:

The company has following Board approved policies for Liguidity Risk Management.
- Asset Liability Managemant Folicy

- Interest Rate Policy

- Liquidity Management Framework

« Risk Management Policy

ALCO provides guidence and directions in terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus

funds.

The Asset LiabHlity Management Commitiee, inter alia, reviews the asset liability profile, risk monitoring system,

Hquidity rigk management, funding and capital planning, and contingency planning.

Borrowing prograrn has now expanded to £. Rs. 23,528 millions with limlts from 22 lenders; 9 PSBs, 6 private sector
barks, 3 MNC banks and other Fls. Further, Commercial Paper limits to the tung of Rs, 1500 millions are also

unutilized and available.

Further, liquidity buffer of Rs. 5,753.41 millions; un-otitized bank Hnes ~ Rs. 33% millions and un-encumbered cash &

Bank balance and lnvestments — Rs. 5,418.41 millions;

Funding Review meeting with = Director, Treasury team , Accounts tearm on monthly basis providing overview pf

liguidity, new funding discussions etc.

Liquidity Overvlew Report - 5 circulated to Management evety month.
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Market Risk

Market risk 15 he risk that the fair vatee o7 future cash lows of fingagial ingtruments will fluctuate due to changas in market varlables such as interest rates, equity prices
and Index movements. The company classilies exposures bo market ek inte gither trading or non-teading portfolios and manages sach of those partfolios separately, All
the pasitions are managed ang monitared uiing sensitivity analyses.

Tatal market risk éxposure

A mt Mareh 31300 Wt March 3172001

financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,136.80 - &,136.80 143153 - 1,492.53

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,281.61 - 1,281.61 - - -

Trade Receivables 7.29 - 7.29 1.95 - 195

Loans 18,782.78 - 18,782.78 11,652.66 - 11,652.66 | Interesy rate risk
Other Financlat assets 137.77 - 237,77 1RBd.61 - 184.61 | Interesy rate risk
Total financial assets ,546.25 - 24,546.25 13,2H.75 - 13,270.75

Financial liabilities

Trade Fayables G4.04 - f4.04 71.82 - 7182
tyebt securities 2,511.69 - 2,511.69 2,516.71 - 2,516.75 [ Inferest rate risk
Borrowings {Other than Debt Seeurities) 16,116.37 - 16,116.37 7,184.05 - 7.284.05 | Interest rate risk
Subordinated Liabilities 326.96 - 338.96 - - - Intierest rabe righ
Other Financial labilities B11.65 - 812.65 101.79 - 200179 | Interest rite rigk
Total finansial liabilitias 14, 841,71 . 19,841.71 10,074.37 - 10,0437

a. Interast Rate Risk
The company uses 3 mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquldity & fund requirements of Its day-to-dey operations. Further, certaln interest bearing lisbilitles carry
variable interest rates,

Far flgating eata liabilitias, analysis is prepared assuming the amount of labllity cutstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

The fotlowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonsbly possible change in interast rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With alt uther
variables held tonstant, the company's profit befare tax s affected through the impact on floating rate borrowlngs, as follows:

Interest rate sersitivity

Bark Boprowings

As at Mareh 31, 2022 INR h1es] (72.31) 300 74,31
As 3t March 31, 2021 INR 100 (52.56) 00 52,56

Transfer of Financial assets

Assignment fransaction:

Duting the year ended March 3%, 2022, the Compary Has sald loans and ddvandes measured at amartised cost as per assignment deat, Az per the torms of these daals,
since substantial eisk and rewards related to these assets wera transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the Company's balance sheet, to the

extent of share of Assignee.

The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the yewr for ity buginess model, Based an the future buginess plan, the company
business model remains te hiold the assets for coltecting contractual cagh fiows.

The table below summarisas the sarrylng amount of the derecagrised financial assats measured ot amantised cost and the galn on derecognition, pr type of asset,

Lizaiis and advanices ineasiired at amortised cost s at Mareh 31,2021

Carrying armount of derecognised financlat assets 1,112.85

Gain on derecognition of financial assets 127.2%
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Emipleyes Stock Option Plan

31, 202z

Tha RBoard of Directors tewk the dectsion to introduce Adani Emplayes Stack Qption Plan, 2020 (Hereinalter called “ESGP 2026") at the meating held ap Jund 28, 2070, THe shareholders appraved It
At thw Atnudi General Meeting held on Septemba: 28, 2020, The plen provides for the isuance of stock options ta senlor employeas. nder the plan, the Compardy Has issued twa serles of optien:

with different vesting period, Linger buth the series, the aptio

The dotails of the ESCHF 2020 as on March 31, 2022 arg ;

ns vest not earfier than 1 year and nok latar than 4 yescs fram the date of the grant,

Particlularg !

§i)

Optiens approved ta be Issuse s ESOPs 4,844,995

Date of Grant Qeteber 3, 2020 lanuary 1, 2037

Dptieny granted 3,34,545 | 2,26,471 1,655,130 |
Muttad of Settlerment Eauity

Thir etalls of the ESOF ag an Mareh 31, 2021 are

Partichulary

il

Gptions approved to be issued #9 ESOPs 8,64,90% Nt Applitabile
Date of Grant Quiobar 3, 2020 Not Anp|lcabie
Qptlahs granted e 3,234,645 | 3,26,471 Nat Applicabie
Method of Settletient Equity Not Applicabte

a. Recoaciliatiop of Optlons

Cption Dutnmnd\ng 4t the beginning of the yaar

QpRtlans Gratted

1,585,130

Qptians Exareised

Uptions Reinstated

Cptions Lapzed

ta3,473)

Optiohs Forfeited

Optians Qutsgmdln# 4t the and of the year

2,158,021

1,5%,130

{inR)
Cptions Dutstanding at the bapinning of tha year . - - - Nat Applicable Not Applicable |
Opthons Granted 3,34,845 193 226471 191 Mot Appticable Nt Applicable
Opetivng Expriived - . - - Net Applicable Not Applicabla
Cptlany Rainstated - . . - |..Not Applicabls | Not Applicable
Options lapsed (75,201) 191 [31.30%) a3y Not Applicaisie ) Not Applicable
Uptions Forfeited . - - - Mot Applieakle Mt Anslitabile
Options Gutstanding at the end of the year 1,59.444 13 1,88,562 191 Wot Applicaple Mot Aoplicable

b, Balance outstanding ot the end of the year aro as foll

DWE -

Vested Dptions

Sarias | 172,178 181
Series Il 62,226 191
Series fil " 278
Wvetted Optiony

Taring § 43,842 131
sarins it 1,256,336 181
Sortec i 1,55,130 279

Vostad Dptions

Serlgs | 4 191
Series Il - 151
Series Il Nut Applicable Nat, Appllqal}]ﬂm
Unvested Options

serigs | 2.59.444 isi
Series i 1,B8,562 151
Leries Hi Not Applicable

Nt Appiteabie
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<. Welghted average reralning life of the ESOP outstanding

Sariag | 013

Saries 1| 0.68
Sarias |1} 1.7?

Series | 0,76
Series | 152
et Il Nat Applicabia

d. Following amount has been recognived as an expense and Included In 'Note 33 - Employes beneRt expenses' and total carrylng amount at the end of the period.

Y % March 31, 2024 - Ao wt March 31, 2021
Expanse ariging from aquity sattled shirra Bated payment traniadticn 30,81 30.35
Carrying amount at the end of the year 73,32 37.14

&, Faly value of the options granted

GShare Price an the date of Grant (IR) 351.85 T T T 36195 T 27800 o
Exprelze Price {INR} 191,00 191.00 181.00 1g91.d0 191.00 279,00 243.00 278,041
Expacted Volatility {%] B33 50.73% 53.22% 50.73% 25.21% SB.4E% 55 07%) 53.93%
Life of options granted [years) 3,00 3,50 3,00 3,50 4,00 2,50 3,00 1 50
RISk frick InSerkat rata (%) 4.8E% % bfi% 4.80% 5.08% 5.20% 4.86% 411% 5.3
Expactad diwidend rate [%} 0.00 0.09 Q.00 .00 0,00 0.00 0.00 Q.00
Fair valua af aptions £¢ per black 720,05 225.00 220405 225,90 230,36 11041 11597 12378
schales ((N#)

Risk free Interest rote

The risk:(row 101arast rate belng cansidered for the caiculation is the interest rate spplicable Far matdrity equal to the expected life of the options bated o the rero-yleld curve for Government
Seturities,

Expactad Hfe of options

Time te Maturlty / Expactad Lite of aptions is the period for whith the Company axpests the aptieng t ke live, The minimus Tite of a stock optlan 15 the mibimam period before which the options
&ARNOT ba exercoad and the maximum life is the period after which the optiens cannot be exarciied. The axpected |ife of 4n sward of stack options shali tike into #6eaunt the following facters —

|. The expected life must at least includa tha vesting period.

II. The average lengths of tima of similar grants hava remeinag qutstanding in the past. i the company does not have a suffidently long history of stock cptian grants, tha sxperiance ot an
appropriately comparable paar grovps iy b taken ihta congideation,

I, Tha expeerad iy of stock aptions should nat be lats than Aall of the exarelse petiod of the stotk apthons Maved untl and unless the same 13 supportad by histarieel evideices with respect to
ytek epptions Issuad by tha compeny earler.

A welghted aversge of vests has bean calculated to arrivo at tha veiue of the aptions geantad.

Expected volatility

Volutility 1s & myesurw of the amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected 1o fluctuate during a period. Since each vest has been considered oz a separate gront, we have considared the
vohatility for periods, corresponding to the oxpected ives of diffarent vests, prior to the grant date. Tha Fair value of an option Is very sensitive to this variable. Migher the volatility, higher is the Fair
value. The rationale being, tha more volatlla a steck 15, the merg is Its potentlal ta go up (ar come dawn), and the maore Is the prabability to gain from the movement in the price. Accordingly, an
aption ta buy a highly valatila stk is more valuahte than tha ane o buy 8 lnss volatile seock, far the prabalkility of gaining is lxsanz In the latter cuse.

Exppcted dividend pield

tixpected dividend yield has baen calculated based on the dividend dectared for 1 financlal year priar ta the date of grant. The dividend yleld has been derved by dividing the dividend per share by
tha market price per share op the datq of grant.
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{All amcrunts In Ry, in Millions unless orherwise stoted)

REB] Dizsclosures

The following additional information is disclosed ln the terms of Master Direction - Men-Banklng Financial Company -
Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Resarve Bank) Directions, 2016 issved vide
Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 as amanded.

Capital 1o Risk Asset Ratio {CRAR)

) ‘As at As at
Parti }

articulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
CRAR (%) 471% 25.74%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 22.458% 25.13%
CRAR - Tler |l Capital (%] 221% 0.61%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - Il Capital 336.96 -
Armount raised by issue of perpetuaf debt tnstruments -
nvestmants
pacticuters - Coasat P Asar T

“March 31, 2022

" ‘March 31,2021

{4) Value of tovestments

{1 Gross value of investments

{#) In India

{#) Qutside Indiz

{1} Provisians for Depreciatian

(@) in India

{a) Cutside India

(H1} Net vatue of invostments

(&) In Ingdia

{#) Qutslde India

(b} Movements of provisions held towards impakrment on investments

(1) Opaning balance

{H} Add : Pravisions rmade during the year

{HI) Lass : Write-off/ Written. back of excess provisions during the year

{WV) Closing halance

Crariviatives

Forward Rate Agreemant {FRA) / Interast Rate Swagp (IRS)

Particulars

Asat
Matrch 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

{0 The notional principal of swap sgreamonts

(H) Losses which would be incueced if counterparties failed to fulfil their
ubligations under the agreements

(1) Collateral yequired by the NBFC upon entering lnto swaps

() Concentration of credit rigk arising from the swaps.

(V) The fair value of the swap hook
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Notes to the Financial Staternents for the year ended March 21, 2022
{Afl erngrunts in Rs, in Millions unless otherwise stated)

b.  Exchange Traded Interest Rate [IR) Derivative
‘ As 3t - As ot
Particulars - ; ‘
i ‘ e : March 31, 1022 March 31, 2021
{1) Nottonal principal amount of exchange traded (R dervatives
undertaken during the yeat {instrument wise}
{It} Notlonat principat amount of exchange traded Ik derlvatives -
outstanding (Instrument-wise)
{1t} Nottonal principal ampunt of exchange traded IR derivatives -
outstanding and not “highly effective {instrument-wise)
{IV) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding -
and not "highly effective” {Instrument-wise}
€. Disclosuras on Risk exposure in derivative.
I Qualitptive Dischasures Not Applicable
i Cuantitative Disclogures
N Co o hAgat R -t 1 B
Particulars : : :
: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2029
{1} Derivatives (Motional Princlpal Amount) -
{If) Marked to Market Positions {1) -
{a) Assets -
(b) Liability -
{H1) Credit exposure -
{IV] Unhedgad exposura v
56.4 Securitisation
As at As at
IParticula
= March 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021

{1} Mo of 5PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions

{1} Total amount if securitised assets a5 par books of the 5PV
sponsored

{i} Tatal amaunt of exposure retainad by the NBEC towards the MRR a3
on date of halange shest

() Off-balance shest expasure towards credit enhancements

(b) On balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancemants

IV} Amount of exposures ta securltisation transactions other than MRR

{8} OFf-balance sheet expasure towards ¢radit enhancemnents

(1} Exposure 1o own securitisations

{Il} Exposure to third party securitisations

{b) On balance shret exposures towards credlt enhancements

{1) Exposure to own securitisations

{il} Expasure to third party securitisations

{ Thy
yE

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 33, 2022
(Al amounts In Ry, In Millians unliéss otherwise stated)

Details of finzncial assets gold to securitlzation / reconstryction campany for asset reconstiuction,

Particulars

As at
March 33, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

{1} No. of accounts

{11} Aggregate vaiue {net of pravisions) of accounts sokd to SC / RE

{H!} Aggregata consideration

{iv} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred
in eprligy years

(V) Aggregate gain/loss over net book valus

Detalls of Assignment Transactions undertaken by NBFCs

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

Na. of accounts

1,882

4,243

Aggrogate value (net of provisian) of accounts assignad

531,86

1,112.95

{Apgrepate consideration

931.86

Additlonal consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
aartler years

1,112,595

(Aggregate gain/loss over net book value

During the year, the Company has entered into assignment transaction amounting to fs. 931.86 million (PY ~ Rs. 1,312.85
millions}, On the assignment transaction, the Company has recogrised upfront gain on derecognition of financial instrumants
amounting to Bs, 208 81 milllons (PY — Rs, 127,29 milllons) as day 1 gait, The unwinding on account of the actual excess interest
spread realised and reversal of ewcess interest spread on foreciosed Ioans during the year is adjustad in interest income

sggregating to Rs 95,86 millions (Y « Rs. 5.48 mililens) and day 1 profit [z not netted off for the same,

Petails of non-performing financial assets purchased / sald

Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased:

Particulars A at As at

Mach 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(1} No. of accounts purchased durlng the year - -
{11} Ageregate outstanding -
{i1) O these, number of accounts restructured during the year
{Iv) Aggregate outstanding - .
Details of non-pedorming financial assots sol:

As at At at

Particulars

Match 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

{1} Mo. of agcounts sald

[} Aperegate sutstanding

{1V} Ageregate consldaratlon received
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Notes to the Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amounts in Rs. in Millions unfess otherwise stated)

Exposure to Real astate sector

Pa.r';]qiulam

" march 33, 2022

- Asat

AS at
Marech 31, 2021

Cateﬁuw

a} Direct exposure

{ Residentlal mortgage:

Lending fully secoegd by mortgage on residential property that is or
will be peoupled by the boreower or that is rented;

10,61

14,42

{ii} Commerclal real estate:

Lending secured by mertgages on commercial real estates (office
bullding, retall space, multipurpose commercial premises, mukti-family
regidential buldings, multi-tenantad commercial premisas, industrial or
ware house space, hotels, land acquisitions, develcpment and
construction, ete.) Exposure would also include non-fund based {NFB)
limits;

303.64

(i) Invastment in mortgage backed securitios (MBS} and othar
securitizod exposuras:

(a) Rasidertial

{b} Commergial real estate

Expature to Capital Market

l“-';ll"ﬂcular:

" March 23, 2072

CoAsat o

-~ Asat

' March 31,2021

{i) direce nvastment In equity shares, convertible bands, convertible
debenturas and units of equity orented mutuat funds the corpus of
which Is not exclusively invested in corporate debt; *

{il} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs /|
E30QPs), convertible bonds, convertible dabentures, and units of equity-
oriented mutusl funds;

{ili} advances for any othar purposes where shares or convertibie bands
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;

{iv) advances for any other purposes ta the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bands / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover
the advances;

{v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on hehalf of stockbrakers and market makers;
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Notes to the Firanclal Statements for the year anded March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs, in Millions unless otherwise stated)

{vi} loans sanctioned to corporstes against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or ather securitivs or on clean basis fur meeting
promoter’s cantribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation
of raising resources

(vi1) bridge Ipans to companles agatnst expected equity flaws / issues;

(viil} Al exposures te Ventyre Capital Funds {hoth reglstered and
utregistered)

‘Tatal Exposure to Capital Market

* The Company has not made any investmaent in equity oriented mutual funds as at the year eng

Financing of Parent Company Product

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

Details of financing of parent company products if any

56,11 Details of Single Borrower Limit ($6L) / Group Borrower Limit (GB1) exceeded by the Company
Tha Prescribed exposure Hmit of ¢redit and Investment concentration of single party and singhe group of parties has not

56.142

56.13

56.14

exceeded during the year 2021-22 angd 2020-21.

Linsecured Advarnices
Particulars © L hsat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Amount of unsecured advances given  gainst  rights,  licensas, -
suthorizations etc.
Amuount of advances glven against intangible securitles such as chorge B -
over the rights, licensas, authority etc.
Raglstration from Other Financial Sector Regulators
Particulars oo chsa g Asat

' .. March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Reglstration from other financial regutator, if any
1. Insurance Regulatory and Revelopmant Authority of India IRDA IRDA

- Registration Number CAQGI8 CADE28

- Registration Date

Decasnber 31, 2021

Decomber 31, 2018

- Repistration Validity

December 30, 2023

Dacernber 30, 2021

Fenalty

Particulars

As gt
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Penalty if any levled by Regulator

Total
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Credit Rating

Particulars

ol chAsat o
March 31,2022

A AL
‘March 31, 2021

Nature of borrowing

Rating / Outlook

Rating / Outlook

CRISIL

CRISIL

Shart Term Bank Loans

CRISIL AT+

CRISIL AL+

Long Term Bank Loans

CRISIL AR-/Stable

CRISH AA-/Stable

Commercial Paper

CRISIH AT+

CRISIL AL+

Non - Canvertible Debentures (Short Term)

CRISIL AL+

CRISIL Ai+

Nar - Convertible Debentures (Long Tedm)

CRISIL AA-/Stable

CRISIL AA-fStable

Subordinated Debt {Long Term)

CRISIL AA-fStable

Provisions and contingencies

Particulars

JAs at
March 31, 2022

" -Asat
March 31, 2021

1. Provigions for dupreciation on investment

2. Provisions made towards Incpme tax

12.33

1130

3. Provisions towards NPAs*

17402

G3.80

3. Pravigions for standard assetsé

42.87

{36.13)

4. Other provision and contingencles

Gratuity

808

472

Compensated absence

15,58

2.57

Performarce Linked Ineantive

13.26

Provisicn for expenses

41,159

16.76

* Represents impairement oss olfpwance on stoge 3 loans,
# Represents impalrment foss alfowance an stage 1 and stoge 2 logns.

special Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934

Statutory Reserve

Paftiq:ljlarﬁ

“Asar

*."‘March 31, 2022

C-Asat

" Muarch 31, 2021

Balance at the boginning of tha year

a) Statutory reserve as par Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934

5180

15.35

b} Amount of spectal reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Incame Tax Act, 1961
taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
45-IC of the Reserve Bank pf Indla Act, 1934

Addition / appropriation / withdrawals during the year

Add:

a} Amount transferred as per Section 45-IC of the Reserva Bank of india
Act, 1934

14.39

3255

b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1) (viil) of tncome Tox Act, 1361
taken In to account for the purpase of statutory reserve untder Sectlon
45-1¢ of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

Legs:

3) Amount appropriate as per Sectlon 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of Indla
Act, 1934

b} Amount of withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36{1) {viil) of Intome
Tax Act, 1961 taken in to atcount for the purpose of statutory reserve
under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934

Balance at the end of the year
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0} Statutory reserve as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India 66.29 531,90
Act, 1934
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1) [vili) of income Tax Act, 1961 .
taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
431G of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Total §6.29 51.80
Note: Buring the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from reserves
Concentraticn of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking / holding NBFCs)
- At at As at
Particulars
‘ . March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors -
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of v -
the NBFC
Loncantration of Advances

BT TTTREREEN - As Bt
Particulars - : - o

L March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Logns to twenty largest borrowers 1,335,66 168231
Percentage of Loans to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of 7.02%: 14.22%
the NBF{

Conicentration of All Exposure (Including off - batance sheet exposures)
Sl AsEEL “Asat
Pardeubars st : : :

L March 31, 2022 ‘March A1, 202,
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1,422.60 1,868.949
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrdwers / tustomers to £.99% 14.83%
total exposure of the NBFG ort borrowess / customers,

Loncentration of credit Impalred loans
' Vo hsar Az at
Particulars A . ‘
el March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Expasure to top four ¢redit impaired accounts 3177 26.44
Sector Wise Credit-impaired Assets urdar Ind AS
- As ut As at
Patticulars ‘ :
‘ ‘March 31, 1022 March 33, 2021
1. Agricuiture B allied activities 62.72 27.85
4. MSME 123.02 94,71
3. Corparate Borrawers 3.81 3,83
4. Services R B
5. Unsecured Persanal Loans 17.84 3.45
6. Auto Loans 76.33 203,46
7. Other Pergonal hoans - 3.90
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Moverment of Credit-lmpaired Loans under Ind AS

oL LLooAsat  Asat
Pgmp"hﬁ CMarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(1) Net impaired loss allowance to Net loans (%) 0.98% 0.69%
(11} Movament of Credit impaired loans under Ind-AS (Gross}
{a) Opening Balante 163,20 45.83
th} Additions during the year 120.62 117,37
(¢} Clusing balance 283.82 163.20
(1) Movement of Net Impaired loss
{a) Gpening Balance BO.73 27.16
{b} Additions during the year 103.62 53.57
_{¢} Closing batance 184.34 80.73
(11} Movement of impairment loss sllowance on cradit impaired loans
(a) Cpening Balance B2.46 18.66
(b} Additians during the year 17.02 63.80
{c} Closing bafance 99.48 82.45
Ovearseas Assets
T CAsat - Asat
Particul . . S
Hiculars March 31,2022 . ] -March 3, 2021
Dveérieas assets - -
Off Betance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
hsat o] " hs ok
Parti Dt TR I
articulars March 31,2022 - March 31, 2021
Dornestle
Qvarseas -
Custamer Complaints
o CLoAsar o - hsat
Pamwl‘ars . March 31, 2022 Match 31, 2021
{2} No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - 1
(b} No, of complaints recaived durirg the year 70 175
{c] Mo, of complaints redressed during the year 70 176
{d) No. of camplaints pending at the end of the year - .
Adverse remarks
s at Asat
P?mw'am March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Adverse remarks if any given by Regulator E -
Expenditure In forelgn currency
As at Az at
Particul .
articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Forelgn Currency Transactien 2.37 2.5

Raceivable and Payable outstanding in foreign currancy
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Disclosure pursuant to Master Dicection « Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve 8ank) dated September 29, 2026

Pa;'tic"tli!a'ml .'3"‘ .

ot Asar
" March 31, 2042

Az at
March 331, 2021

Amount of Fraud detected during the year

3.4

2,80

Area of Operatians

Particulars

Datails

Area and Country of Cperations

india

jolnt venture partners with regard 1o joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries

Nil

Fostponements of revenue recognition: Current year: Nil {Previous year; Nil)

Remuneration to non-executive Directors

Particulars .

... "For the year
" "March 31, 2023

- 'For the year
- March 31, 2023

Mr. Rajender Mahan Malla {Independent Director]

1.20

1.20

Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran {Independent Director)

1.20

Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in note 49

Net Profit of Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting palicies
There are no material prior period items other than those disclosed in Financial Statements, Thern bas bean no change in
areounting paticies followed ather than these disclosed in the Financial Statemants,
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Notes to the Financial 5tatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Al atpgunts in RS, in Millons wenless otherwise statea)

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (NBPL).CC.PD.N®.108 22 10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertalning to Asset Clagsification as per RBI
Nattns
ApRL 31 March 2027
. - o oy lessAllowances | ) .| DHfarence between
- Asget Classification oy per O jaster Classtication s GrowsCarying ] | C(Providenstas NeLCH wﬁ " Amu unt Frovision required as ind A% 109 previsions
fB Noarms perind AS109 | Amount as per lnd AS] requived anderlnd § 0 T ) ] per IRACP forme
Con AT ‘ : S R and IRACP pormy
e A5 109 L
0] [E) [E) ] [EEEE] i) [naas)
Porfarming Assets
Standard Stage 1 17,B79.75 111,63 17.759.12 29,35 2128
$tage 3 256 73 15.43 839,33 B39 {2.88)
suhiatal tor Farforming Assets 14,735 48 137.04 18, 500.44 T 1R 18.40
Hon-Performing Assets (NPA}
substandard Stage 3 10824 47.98 140,36 1737 061
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 8922 45.14 44.08 2194 2.0
1t 3 years atage 3 f36 636 - 193 4.43
More than 3 years Stage 3 . ' v . -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - o
Subtetal fue NPA A83.682 39,48 164,34 A1.24 57.24
ther items  such a5 guarantees, loan Stage 1
camrmitrents, etc. which are Jp the scope of ing " - “ * -
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage 2 . R R . N
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
{IRACP} norms Stage 3 . . . I -
Subtatal for pther lkems - - n . -
e Tl Stage 1 1y Jab.64 12.259.12 94,35 21.28
:‘ Totsl o ' - Stape 2 oo B TR - -16.41 -835.32 -10.25 {288
. .‘ U Slmi ?M ‘99,48 ‘184,34 A42.24 YAl
Yotal 19,415 30 ] 18,482 78 16000 75.54 |
Ay at 31 March 2021
Lo o C L Les Allowanees TR Diiference batwesa
. . Raset qlnsslficnlian aspar o |Asset Classicationas]  Gross Carying ~ | .I.Ithislpqr-] By m - A ) FI’:D\I‘EIDD raguired as nd AS 109 provis!
Lo REIMeTmME e ind A5 188 - | Atnount a% per Ind AS{ requited undec ind | “‘-. W"K mwm por IRACH notms e provisiens
: ‘ i AR TIERLE S AR anl IRACE niwms
BRE 45109
{1} 12 {9) {4 _{Sl=fapfd) - {6] E7iuiald6)
Porforming Assetx
Standard Staga 1 10,975.43 T7.58 10,B97.85 4541 5217
Stage 2 E90.85 16.5% B}4.07 2.78 11683 |
Subtotal for Performing Assets 11,656.09 84,17 11,571.92 48,17 4500
Nan-Performing Aseats (NPA)
tubstandard Skage 3 13379 5623 72.50 12.40 43189
Doubtiul - up to 1 ysar Sage 3 R85 5.3 324 14.51 14.80
1t 3 years Stage & - - " f -
Marz than 3 years Stape 3 - - - - .
Lipds Stage 3 D BE 186 - 036 0.00
Subtotal for NPA 163.20 82.46 B’o.74 .77 5869
Other  itams  suck  as  guarantees, laan Stoge 1 0 - . . -
commitmants, etc. which arg in the seope of d Shage 2 - - - -
AL 1048 but not covered under gyrrant lacome Stage 3 - - - - v
Subtotal for othet items - - - - -
Stage 1 10,875.43 7158 10,897.85
*otal Stage 2 - o6k pLET] 574407
Stape 3 ' 183.20 . 6246 - iy
““ﬁ.'.' 11,829.29 176,63 11,652,066
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ADANI CAPITAL FRIVATE LIMITED

Naotes ta the Finsncial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
{AN amounts in Bs. in Milians unless otherwise shated)

Dlsclosure as per clreuiar DOR.Na.BP.BC/3/21.04 048/ 2020-21 (ssued by AB dated August & 2020 for Resolution Framawaork for COVID-19-Felatod Stiwes far the half year

ended March 31, 20727

mg‘ﬁi'ﬁumbWhr.

Personal Loans

Carporata Loans

f which MSMEs n - - - -
thers 24838 - 0.37 36.13 A41.24
Total 44838 . o 35,13 441,24
Information refating To Rustruetured Asesupty [n ecardanoe with RBI notdfication DOR.Na, B# BL/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August &, 2020

Fartipilary G A Ak ech 31,2023 71 AR ¢ March 3173001

Ma of Aseounts Regtructured EFL] F

Armgunt A41.24 14.56

u‘_:" s
. Jrgs
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2032
(Al ormounts in Rs. in Millions unless atherwise stated)

The Indian economy is impacted and would continue to be impactad By this pandemic and the resultant lockdawn/restrictions, dua to
the contraction in Industrial and services output across smalt and large businesses. The impact of the resurrgence of COVID -19
pandemic on Company’s resylts, including credit guality and provisions, gzin/loss an fair valise changes, investment, remains uncertain
and dependent on the curreat and further spread of COVID -19, steps taken by the government, RBI and other regulators to mitigate the
ecanomic impact and also the time it takes for economic activities to resurme and reach the normal levels.

The Company has maintained sufficient capital and tiguidity position and it will continua the same going forward.

In assessing the recoverability of loans and receivables, the Company has considered internal and external saurces of information,
including credit reports, economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of appraval of these financial results. Given the dynamie
and evolving nature of the pandemic, its effect on the operations of the Company may be different trom that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial results.

The Cede on Social Security, 2020 ("Code’) refating 1o employee henefits during employment and post-employment benefits recelved
Prasidential assent in September 2020. The Cade has been published in the Gazette of India. Howeaver, the date on which the Cade will
come into effect has not been natified and the final rutes/interpretation have not vet been issued. The Cempany will assess the impact
of the Code whan it comes into effect and wilf record any related tmpact In the period the Code becomes effective,

Other Additional Regulatory Information

Title deeds of iImmovable Properties not held in name of the Cormpany
The Company degs not have any Immavable properties where title deeds are not held in the name of the company,

Loans and Advancas

There are no loans or advances In the nature of loans which are granted to promoters, diractors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:

{a) repayahle on demand, ar

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Datails of Benami Property held
The Company does nat have any benami property, whers any proceeding has been initiated or panding against the company for holding
any Benami property.

Security of current assets against borrowings

The Company has heen sanctioned working capital imits in excess of Rs, flve crores in zggregate fram banks duting the year on the basis
of security of currant assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such hanks are In agraement
with the books of accounts of the Company.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company is not declared as wilful defaviter by any bank gr financial Institution or other lender.

Relationship with 5truck off Companles
The Company dogs not have any transactions with companies stryck off,
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notas to the Financial Statemaents for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts i Rs, in Milllans unless otherwise stated)

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges whieh is yet ta be reglsterad with RQC beyond the statutary period,
Utilisation of barrowed funds 2nd share premigm
a) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ether persen(s) or entitylies), including fereign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall;
(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entitles identified in any manner whatseever hy or on hehalf of the company
(UHimate Beneficiaries), or,
(i} provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the LHtimate Beneficiaries.
b} During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party)
with the understanding {whether recorded In writing or otherwisa) that the Company shall:
(i} directly or indirectly lend ar Invest in other persons ar entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries), or,
{ii) provide any guarantes, security of the like to of on behalf of the Ultimata Beneficiaries.
Undisclosed Ingcome
The Campany have not any such transaction which ks not recorded in the boaks of aceounts that has bean surrendered or disclased as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the ncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Incomae Tax Act, 1961).
Details of Crypte Currency or Virtual Cuvrency
Tha Campany has not traded or invested In Crypte currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and any of the previgus
financial years.
Financial Ratios
Mg, Asat March 31,2022 51 S As it March 31,202

1 (ligquidity coverage ratio (%) Nat spplicable as per RBI guidetines

2 |Debt — Equity ratio {Refer Nate 1 below) 3,70 2.80

3 |Net Worth (Refer Note 2 balow) 5,120.24 3,5(12,33

4 |Total debts to total assets ratio (Refer Note 3 balow) Q.76 0.72

5 |Gross Stage 3 asset (%) (Refer Note 4 befow) 1,49% 1.38%

G |Net Stage 3 asset (%) (Refer Nate 5 below) 0.98% 0.695%

7 |cRAR {5) {calculated as per RBI puidebines) 24.71% 15.74%

8 |Tier« 1 CRAR (%) 22.49% 25.13%

9 Tier - Il CRAR (%] 2,22% 0.61%
Note;

1. Dabt-equity Ratig = Total Debt (Dabt Securities + Subordinated Uabilities + Borrowings other than debt securities) / Net worth

2, Net Worth = Equity share capital + Gther equity

3. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt (Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabilities + Borrowings other than debt securities) / Total
assets

4. Gross Stage 3 ratio = Gross Stage 3 lvans / Gross Loans

5. Met Stage 3 ratio = (Gross stage 3 loans - impalrment loss allowance Ffar Stage 3) / (Gross Loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage
2}




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 1o the Financial Statememts for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amaunis in Rs. in Millions unless atherwise stoted)

64 Standards Issued but not yet effective
Thete are neither new standards nor amendmants to extsting standards which are effective for the annual period beginning from 01 Apri
2021,

65 Previous year's information have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to  correspond  with  current period's
classification/diselosure,

Thls is the Notes referred to in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors of
Chartered Accountemts Adanl Capital Private Limited
ICAI Firm Regigtratipn Number: 002391C/NS00069 CIN: UGE990GIZ016PTCO36S2
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ADAMI CARITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
Annexure |

(A& required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Diregtion - Non-Banking Einancial Gompany - Systemically Important and Non-Depostt
taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016

(Rs. i Lakhs)

Aount Amaynt,
Parclculars Qutstanding Overduea
Liabilities side
() Loans and advances availed by the
non banking financial campany inclusive of interest aceryed
thereon but not patd;
{a} Debentures ; Setured 25,117

tinsecured

{other than falting within the meaning of public deposics)
() Deferred Credits -
{e) Term Lodns 161,354
(2} Intes-&orporate toans and borrowings -
(m) Cammertiat Paper -
{£) Othet Loans - Subhordinaced Debt 3370

Assets side Armoynt
Ourstanding
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances inciyding bills
recelvables [other than those included In (4) helow]
(a} Secured 167,883
(1) Unsecured FERL )

(5} Break up of Leased Assets and stock gn hirg and gther 3ssets tounting tawards Asset Finance activities

() Lease assets including lease rentals Lnder sundry dabtors ;
(8} Financial lease -
(b) Operating lease
(1} Stoek an hire including hire charges under sundry debitars;
(a) Assets on hire
(b} Repossessed Assats
(iil) ather loans counting towards Assel Fingnee activitias
(8) Loans where assets have been reposgessar
(3) Loans other than (3} ahove

{(4) Break-up of Investments !
GCurrent Investments

1, Guaoted !
(i¥ Shares : (2) Bquity -
{b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bands
{iti} Units of mutual Fynds
{iv) Government Sacyrities -
{v} Others (please specity)




2. Unquoted ;
(i) $hares : () Equity
(b} Preference
() Dabentures and Bonds
(3ii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Governiment Securities
(v) Others « Pass through certificates

Pargiculars Amount
Gutstanding
Lang Term inves{mants ;

1. Gunted ;
(i) Shares : (a) Equity

{0} Preference -
(i} Debentures and Bands -
(L8 Linits of mutual funds -
{iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unguoted :
{l) Shares ; (#) Equity
{t) Preference
{i3} Debentures and Bonds
{Jii) Units of mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securlties
(v} Others - Pass through certificates

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) abave
Pizase see Note 2 below:
Amoupt net of pravisions
Category Fecured Ungecured Tatal

1. Related Parties

(2} Subsidiaries

{t) Companies in the same groyp

(¢) Other related parties
2, Qhet than related parties 1,61,883 28310 190,193
Tatak 1,617,883 28,310 190,195

(6) Investor graup-wise classification of all investments
(current and long terrn) in shares and securities

{both quoted and enguated),

Flease cee note 3 below:

Garegory Market Velug / Book value
Break up or Fair (Net of
valye or NAY Provisions)

1. Related Parties

() Bubsidioties

(b) Companies in the same group -
{&) Other related parties

2. Other than velated parties
Tatal

i



{7} Other information
Particytars
(i) Gross Non-Pecforming Assets
(3} Related patties
{b) Other than telated parties
(il) Net Non-Pecforming Assets
(a} Related parties
(b) Other than refated partles
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of gabt

€5

Armgunt

2,838




